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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately RMB344 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.5% in comparison to
that of 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded a loss for the year of approximately RMB34 million, as
compared with loss of approximately RMB16 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB54 million, or 45.0%, from approximately
RMB120 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB66 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB30 million, or 16.8%, from approximately
RMB179 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB149 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products decreased
by approximately RMB131 million, or 50.4%, from approximately
RMB260 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB129 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 22 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally sell POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s overseas customers
which accounted for approximately 84% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group exported
its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts to markets
such as Japan, Hong Kong, Republic of Korea, Taiwan, Spain and
Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers would usually provide
the Group with their design and specification. The Group’s sales
personnel would closely communicate with the Group’s customers.
Depending on the specific needs of these overseas customers, the
Group’s sales personnel would put forward the Group’s suggestions
for modifications to design and specification from its research and
development staff to the Group’s customers for their consideration.
When customers decide on the final design and specification, the
Group would make samples and provide to the Group’s customers
for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the PRC
which accounted for approximately 16% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s domestic
customers would usually place orders with the Group from selection
of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products which
are all designed by its research and development team. The Group
also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas under the
Group’s Jicheng (£ %) brand through sales to our non-trading
customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue decreased from approximately RMB559 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB344 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a dcrease of
approximately 38.5%, which was mainly attributable to the impact of
the pandemic.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB493 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB292 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately 40.8%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
corresponding decrease in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs to cope with the Group’s decrease in revenue for the same
period.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit decreased by
approximately RMB13 million, or 19.7%, from approximately RMB66
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB53 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 11.8% for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately 15.3% for the year ended
31 December 2020.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB9
million, or 90.0%, from approximately RMB10 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to
the combined effect of (i) no exchange gain recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB5.9 million);
and (i) the decrease of government grants.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMB2
million or 10.5% from approximately RMB19 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB21 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in promotion expenses for our Group image.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB9 million,
or 18.4%, from approximately RMB49 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB40 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the decrease of one-off equity-settled share-
based payment expenses of approximately RMB2 million during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB7 million).

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs decreased by approximately RMB7 million, or
63.6%, from approximately RMB11 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to full repayment of certain bank loans during the year ended 31
December 2020.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a loss
for the year of approximately RMB34 million, as compared with loss
of approximately RMB16 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The material decline in the financial performance of the Group
were mainly due to (i) the decrease in revenue due to the impact of
the pandemic; and (i) the impairment loss of approximately RMB23
million recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash
including fixed time deposits of approximately RMB57 million (2019:
approximately RMB55 million) amounted to approximately RMB115
million (2019: approximately RMB82 million), and short-term bank
borrowings amounted to RMB77 million (2019: approximately
RMB203 million). The annual interest rates of loans ranged from
3.40% to 3.85%. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s contingent
consideration payables amounted to approximately RMB14 million.

The Group’s current ratio increased from 2.3 times as at
31 December 2019 to 3.4 times as at 31 December 2020, which
was calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities. As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio
was approximately 34% (2019: approximately 56%), which was
calculated based on the bank borrowings, bills payables and
contingent consideration payables as a percentage of the total
equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2020, the inventories was approximately
RMB260 million (2019: approximately RMB256 million). The inventory
turnover days were increased from approximately 154 days in 2019
to approximately 323 days in 2020, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 365
days.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2020, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB49 million (2019: approximately RMB178 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 150 days to its
trade customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
decreased from approximately 135 days in 2019 to approximately
120 days in 2020, which was calculated based on the average of
the beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2020, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB55 million (2019: approximately RMB31 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were increased from approximately 25 days in 2019
to approximately 54 days in 2020, which was calculated based
on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.

As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB
and Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of
materials and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC
workers are in RMB and US dollar, the Group is exposed to
exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group is exposed to the
risks associated with the currency conversion and exchange
rate system in the PRC.

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and
may adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to
a variety of factors that are beyond our control, including
but not limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business
interruptions, government control, weather conditions and
overall economic conditions, all of which may have an impact
on their respective market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2019: Nil). As at 31 December 2020, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB14 million (2019:
approximately RMB90 million) and bank deposits with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB1.6 million (2019: approximately
RMB10 million) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings and bills
payables.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 1,062
employees (2019: 1,592 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group had no significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and capital assets during the year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount of approximately
HK$134.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB106.0 million)
after deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company published
on 30 December 2016, the Board has resolved to reallocate the
unutilised amount of approximately RMB61.4 million to the following
two areas:

1) approximately RMB36.9 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds for buying new brand-names and/or licensing
rights of umbrella products from Southeast Asian countries
to increase its market shares in those countries as well as
investing in a trading company comprising umbrella and other
products.

2) to increase the allocation for approximately RMB24.5 million
for brand awareness promotions and advertising expenses
both in domestic and overseas markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

The Board is of the view that such re-allocation of unutiised net ZEEERAE ZEFHE EABHEERAE
proceeds is in line with the Group’s new business strategy to FHENARNEBBESELBERE LHEE
shift business focus from developing upstream manufacturing to BB E T HF D B4 & w2 R AR EERE
downstream distribution network and brand building to facilitate  FEERE S 2 AREEDIEFRE 7 FEBEHER -
promotion of the Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher

margins.

As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds had been utlised as R -_ZE-_ZTF+_-A=+—H8 FEHRIEZF
follows: BERENTAE:

Utilised

Unutilised amount for Unutilised

amount as at the year ended amount as at

Revised 31 December 31 December 31 December

Use of net proceeds FERERERE allocation 2019 2020 2020
BE

HZ ZE2CEF Bz

“2-N% +tZA=t-H ZBCBE

t=A=1-H tEE +-A=t-R

BEIIE XBALHE EBALHE *BALE
RMB (million) RMB (million) ~ RMB (million) ~ RMB (million)
AR¥EEL ARWEERT AR®EER AR¥AEER

Increasing our production capacity by BRRETRNER

constructing a factory rEBEEY 24.5 - - -
Paying the outstanding of the consideration 1 AR R Kk TR H10E

in relation to the construction and BRAMETFIREL

completion of the new 10-storey RZAHE

office building 3.1 S = =
Strengthen our technical expertise and BRAEEZRNERR

know-how to ensure continuous MRS

improvement of our products YEAEKEER 37 - - -
Additional working capital and other general BINZEE S R

corporate purposes Hiv—RARAR 10.6 = = =

Further expansion of our branded umbrellas #1138 % £/ B A R EI R9 J
by intensifying our marketing activiiesto BN TERBALE

promote our brand awareness both mE AL EmE—F

in the domestic and overseas EEASEmERS 27.2 15,5 8.2 73
Buying new brand-names and investingin BB EH R AT RIKE

a trading company EUYVNG 36.9 30.9 12 29.7
Total it 106.0 46.4 9.4 37.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

EXPECTED TIMETABLE FOR FURTHER EXPANSION OF OUR
BRANDED UMBRELLAS BY INTENSIFYING OUR MARKETING
ACTIVITIES TO PROMOTE OUR BRAND AWARENESS BOTH IN
THE DOMESTIC AND OVERSEAS

Use of net proceeds FEBREFERE

Further expansion of our branded umbrellas
by intensifying our marketing activities to
promote our brand awareness both
in the domestic and overseas

N5 E M — SRR
AEERETS

58 & SR BAR BA K
BOTERE A EE RS

mREEEHURBRARBEIITES
REAEEmEAREME—DH
BEXAEEmERENRHKEX

Unutilised

amount as at

31 December
2020
HE-Z-%F
+=A=t+-H
AEBASE
RMB (million)
AR¥BEETR

7.3

Expected

timeline for the
application of

the unutilised
proceeds

i R B A
IREEREL:
B ARE R
RMB (million)
AR¥BEER

By 31 December

2021
BHEZE-_—F
+-A=+—H1t

According to the Company’s implementation plan, placing
advertisements in traditional media and internet and participating
in major trade fairs in the PRC and overseas and investing in
advertising and promotional materials for developing new markets of
our umbrella products and for training our sales and technical teams.

Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB7.3
million as at 31 December 2020 allocated for further expansion of
our branded umbrellas by intensifying our marketing activities to
promote our brand awareness both in the domestic and overseas
are intended to be fully utilised for the same specific use by
31 December 2021.

REARANERT S EERKERE B
WETEES 2EFBERBINIEES

REGUMRERSENE

BME ARAEAE

ERREMRAENTS FEZIIHEE R

iy B FX

At R -FF+-_A=+—HHEH
RNREEESUARBAREBINT SRS

EERBEANZEME—SHEAEBRER
BHFRGABREFENOARBIIEE L
BR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HRAHAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

EXPECTED TIMETABLE FOR BUYING NEW BRAND-NAMES
AND INVESTING IN A TRADING COMPANY

Use of net proceeds SRR EAR

e B ke 2 K
KRE-HEHRA

Buying new brand-names and investing in
a trading company

BENmEEBRRE-BESZR
AN ER

Expected

timeline for the
application of

the unutilised
proceeds

iei < B F
FriSREW
RHEARE R

Unutilised
amount as at
31 December

2020

RMB (million)
ARBEETR

By 31 December

2022

BE_T__fF

297 +ZRA=+—HiE

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in E) LM EE 5 AR 2 7 (“Jingting”)
from an independent third party, which was satisfied by way of
RMB5,000,000 in cash and issuance of promissory note with
principal amount of RMB24,000,000 including the maturity term of
36 months.

Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately
RMB29.7 million as at 31 December 2020 allocated for buying new
brand-names and investing in a trading company are intended to be
fully utilised for the same specific use by 31 December 2022.

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

The placing completed on 26 November 2020 and the net proceeds
of the placing were approximately HK$7.3 million. The Group
originally intended to use the net proceeds for the general working
capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds
were fully utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER A SPECIFIC MANDATE

Completion on the placing took place on 21 January 2021 and the
net proceeds of the placing were approximately HK$14.7 million. No
net proceeds from the placing under a specific mandate were used
during the reporting period. The net proceeds are intended to be
fully utilized for the same specific use by 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same person. Mr.
Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that vesting the
roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer in
the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and decision making, and maximizes the effectiveness of
the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe that the presence
of three independent non-executive Directors provides added
independence to our Board. The Directors will review the structure
from time to time and consider an adjustment should it become
appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr. Tso
Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 30 June 2020 due to their other
business engagements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhengshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.
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There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
41 to 42 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fuffill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS BEEHESEEBER

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the HE T -_THF+-_A=+—HILFE &
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the ZBLXFEARFIBREAS BEESEH BEXE
£ o e PN T

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during the B € HHMEE @ NIEREZES R BTRE
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below: N

Audit Remuneration Nomination
General Board committee committee committee

Meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
BRZEE ¥HzEe REZES
BRRAE EzeeE -f -f -

(number of mestings attended/number of mestings held during respective director’s tenure)

(REZERIRLEEARY/ BOERRY)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENERE 0/3 6/6 N/A T3 N/A T F N/A T
Mr. Yang Guang BREE 0/3 6/6 N/A i A N/A i N/A i A
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang HESEE 03 66 NATER NA R N/A FiEf
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ERELE 113 6/6 N/A i A N/A i N/A i

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERERE 213 6/6 2/2 1N 11

Mr. Yang Xuetai BEAEE 0/3 6/6 2/2 il il

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie FREELL 0/3 6/6 2/2 11 11
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANGE EERSRAERR

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect AAFRICMEEZER SR A B AL 2 &
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the EZITENELEE NIRRLHE -
Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020  {Q
20204 F 3§



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREABE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tso
Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee Kit Ying,
Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group's
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed, with the management and the Company’s
auditor, the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference and made relevant recommendations
to the Board. The Audit Committee’s review covered the
audit scope and findings, external auditor’s independence
and performance, the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as well
as their training programmes and budget. It also reviewed this
Corporate Governance Report and an internal control review
report on the Company prepared by an independent advisor.
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(In)

(1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
policy, remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of
Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Each of Mr. Huang Wenji and Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth, being
executive Directors and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, independent non-executive
Director will be subject to retirement and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chiu Kung Wai, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant, who is an
employee of the Company as the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Chiu Kung Wai has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled the
requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

= Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2020 by band is set out below:
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During the year, the Group engaged external auditor to perform audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB489,000
and RMB89,000 respectively. The non-audit services included
primarily ESG reporting advisory, internal control consultancy and
reviewing certain financial information.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

(I)  PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.
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(In)

(1

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance matters
to the Board and Board Committees at the general meetings
or providing written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room 904,
Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
or via email to enquiry@jcumbrella.com.

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change in
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE #HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an account of the environmental, social and
governance (ESG) information on the policies, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and key performance of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. By conducting materiality assessment,
the Group has identified the key ESG topics which are “relevant”
and “important” to our business. In particular, efficient use of raw
materials and packaging materials, employment, development and
training, supply chain management and product responsibility are
the issues of highest priority.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to using resources more efficiently during
our production process. From the Group’s point of view, the efficient
use of raw materials (e.g. POE and nylon) and other packaging
materials are two of the focus areas. We have also implemented
energy saving projects and other measures in order to ensure the
efficient use of energy and water resources.

The Group’s factories follow strictly to ISO 14001, the environmental
management system, during the production operations. The Group
has also minimized the materials used in the manufacturing process
S0 as to maximize our resource efficiency.

Energy Consumption

To reduce consumption through more targeted efforts, the Group
has been participating in an energy conservation programme. In
2020, the Group continued to pursue the efficient use of energy
resources. We have improved our planning on the equipment layout
as well as the operational processes to reduce any redundant
consumption of energy and other resources during production. It
is the Group’s policy to maintain the manufacturing process in an
efficient and effective manner.
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The total energy consumption in 2020 was approximately 6,627
MWh-equivalent; and the energy intensity was 19.2 MWh-e per
million RMB revenue. The details of energy consumption are shown
below:

Type of energy BRER

Direct Energy - Petrol BEeeR— A

Indirect Energy — Electricity BEER—F N

As energy use is also one of the material ESG topics of the Group,
we will continuously monitor and analyse the consumption data so
as to further improve our utilization of energy resources.

Water Consumption

Since 2016, the Group has implemented the “Water and Electricity
Management System” in its factories, formulating a convention for
employees to save water and electricity. For instance, some of the
water-saving measures include the wide use of electric water boilers,
installation of automatic control to avoid long running water and
more frequent maintenance of water pipe network and equipment to
prevent leakage.

In 2020, the total water consumption of the Group was 123,287
cubic meters (2019: 113,789 m?®); and the water intensity was 358
cubic meters per milion RMB revenue (2019: 203 m® per million
RMB revenue).

Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are primarily plastic
wrapping films and carton boxes, of which the sizes are determined
according to the requirements of different customers. As efficient
use of packaging materials is one of our focuses, the Group makes
every effort to minimize any wastage. More specifically, the Group
has stopped using plastic bags for individual products since 2019.

In 2020, the total amount of packaging materials used for finished
products was about 234 tonnes, and the intensity of packaging
material use was 0.68 tonnes per million RMB revenue.
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EMISSIONS

The Group’s umbrella manufacturing business closely relates to
environmental protection — one of our core values. As a leader of
Asia’s umbrella industry, the Group complies strictly with relevant
laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
and follows specific actions taken by different countries closely. To
achieve emission reduction, the Group has implemented numerous
energy-saving projects, e.g. replacing high emission equipment. The
production operations in our factories are completed in accordance
with ISO 14001 standard.

Violating the environmental regulations may result in temporary
suspension of production. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group did not commit any non-compliance with the
relevant regulations.

Air emissions

In 2020, vehicle and other mobile equipment use in our PRC
operations was the major source of air pollutant emissions. The
emission figures are shown in the table below.

BERR

AEBONLREEBHERBRER YA
B mRERENRMANZOEEZ —EA
DNRETENRRE AEBBEKETE
BER KB EREEHENMMEEERERER
WEEETRBERRIGEAETE A
BB AEEERAEZSEEE  flwnE
S BERER A o AP TR EY A E B (R IRHRISO
1400112 252K

ERBRARSESHE SR - RE-T
—EEt-B=t+-BLEE AKERE
RARMA R -

R B

R-ZF_FTFE PEXBEPEANERLE
BB RESERTRAMFE R EERIR-
BEMEBUR I N RPN

Type of emissions 295 & Fill
Nitrogen oxides (“NOX”) Z& t® (INOx )
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) Z&1bH ([SOx])

Respirable suspended particles (‘“RSP”)
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The total greenhouse gas emissions (‘GHG”) in the year ended
31 December 2020 was about 4,030 tonnes of CO2-equivalent
(2019: 5,477 tonnes of CO2-g). The primary source of GHG
emissions was energy indirect emissions (“Scope 2”) of purchased
electricity — 98.5%; whereas direct emissions (“Scope 1”) by
combustion of fuels in mobile sources and other indirect emissions
(“Scope 3”) were relatively insignificant — 0.8% and 0.7% respectively.

For details, please refer to the table below.

#HET —EEHEN

Scope 1 — Direct Emissions
Scope 2 — Energy Direct Emissions

Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions # &3

GHG intensity (by revenue) BRERE

As GHG emissions is the key cause of climate change, the Group
will continue to look for ways to reduce its amount of emissions in
the future.

Waste

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not produce
any hazardous waste from its manufacturing process. For non-
hazardous waste such as discarded packaging materials and
domestic waste of office, a total amount of 240 tonnes (2019: 265
tonnes) was produced.

To further reduce the quantity of waste generated, the Group has
implemented centralized management for production, construction
and installation, monitoring and testing, maintenance and other
activities of various departments.

As a large portion of the waste generated was domestic waste from
office, the Group has taken the following actions to reduce waste

generation:

- communicate through e-mails to reduce the use of papers;

- duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers; and

- monitor the production process to reduce errors and duplicate
productions.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Although “the environment and natural resources” is not identified
as one of our material ESG issues, the Group acknowledges that it
is every business’ common responsibility to minimize any possible
impacts on the natural environment.

For instance, a certain amount of sewage, air pollutants and waste
are inevitably generated by the production processes and domestic
activities of our workers. To reduce the Group’s impacts on the
environment and natural resources, we have implemented various
measures including enhanced control on domestic sewage and air
emissions and more centralized management to avoid “secondary
pollution” caused by mishandling of waste.

SOCIAL ASPECTS
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

As a labour-intensive business, the Group’s success highly relies on
the effort contributed by the employees. The Group has adopted
practices and policies of Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FEARKEMEILE)E) ), Labour Contract Law of
People’s Republic of China ((FEARLME LB A RZE) )
and other relevant laws. The Group has in place human resources
management system that contain specific terms to address
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other
benefits and welfare for our staff. The Group’s employee handbook
distributed to employees also highlights important information of
policies on compensation, employee benefits, rights on termination,
business conduct and leave benefits.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total number of
employees in China was 1,062; the gender ratio between male and
female was approximately 1.3:1. Staff details categorized by gender
and age group are as follows:

461

43% Gender

ezl

601
57%

W Male B W Female Z
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During the reporting period, the Group did not have record of any
material non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity and discriminations.

Health and Safety

In order to minimize workplace accidents and put the health and
safety of the staff as the priority of production, the Group has
established a set of staff handbooks, which include aspects such as
safety policies. Every worker is required to follow safety instructions.
During the year, the Group had no reported incidents of non-
compliance with regulations concerning workplace health and safety.

Workplaces are equipped with fire and safety facilities to prevent
and control outbreak of fire accidents. Also, the functionality of the
fire facilities is regularly checked. Our staff have been trained and
possess basic knowledge in using fire extinguishing equipment. Fire
drills are also regularly conducted. There are strict requirements for
staff in clothing, access of non-operational staff, and knowledge of
workplace hazards to ensure the safety of our employees.

The Group had no reported work injuries and work-related fatalities
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group will continue
to improve the safety management system in order to protect
employees’ health and safety in workplace.

Development and Training

The Group encourages its employees to advance and improve
themselves. Therefore, the Group has held various internal and
external training programs for employees’ further development.
Our staff are regularly assigned to attend training courses such
as management certificate studies, first aids training, and top-up
courses for specialized skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were a total of 457
employees who took part in training. In other words, the percentage
of employees trained was 43%; whereas the breakdown by female
and male employees were 47% and 53% respectively. The subjects
of training include orientation, pre-job training, on-the-job training, fire
safety, professional skills and so on. The Group also gather feedback
and recommendations from staff members after the trainings to
improve the quality and effectiveness of future trainings provided.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Protection of Minors and as
stipulated by the Labour Law of the PRC in terms of employment
management, there is neither child labour nor forces labour in our
Group’s operation. For the year ended 31 December 2020, no
employees of the Group aged under 16. Further, there had not been
any no dispute reported between the Group and its teams of staff.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to ensuring its supply chain operates
efficiently so that our products are standardized and safe. In order
to maintain long-term relationship with our suppliers, the Group has
established a comprehensive vertical supply chain management
system through supplier screening and management as well as
resources integration. In the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had 260 suppliers of which 98% are located in the Mainland
China; whereas other suppliers are mainly from other Asian regions.
The breakdown of suppliers by geographical regions are as below.

HEER
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No. of Suppliers
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By geographical regions
R EE 5 A B A
Japan

AR

Taiwan

Raw materials suppliers are the major type of suppliers of the Group.
For them, the Group evaluates the performance of the major vendors
on whether the quality of raw materials passes our requirement and
standards. Raw materials that do not qualify would be returned to

the corresponding supplier.
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Product Responsibility

The Group has put product quality as our first priority as the
performance of products can directly affect the relationship with
customers as well as the reputation of our business. In view of
it, the Group has introduced ISO 9001 to meet our customers’
expectations and maintain their satisfaction level.

For product quality management, the Group endeavours to identify
product quality problems as early as possible and address them
promptly. As a testament, we employ “Plastic umbrella product
standards and test methods” (B RERIZERBRR T L))
and “Nylon umbrella product standards and test methods” ( {/E &
PE GRIZE R 5 55 E) ) to control product quality. Quality control
covers raw materials quality control, manufacturing process quality
control and finished product quality control.

The products of the Group are subject to the Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((FEAREMBERLEE
%) ) which ensures our responsibility to compensate for damages
done to persons or property in case of defected products. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
products returned due to safety or health problems or any significant
complaint received from our customers. In order to protect
consumer data and privacy, client information is kept confidentially
and destroyed on a timely basis.

Anti-corruption

The Group sees integrity as the key for sustainable development of
the Group. The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
integrity in its operation, and we have no tolerance towards any
corruption, fraud, money laundering, bribery, and extortion. In 2020,
the Group did not have any violation of laws and regulations relevant
to the activity of the Group, such as Criminal law of the People’s
Republic of China ( { FZE ARFEFMEIFE) ) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic ( {/F #E A R KA EH &k T~
EEHFE) ).
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The Group also sees that a management system with good moral
integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms is the cornerstone for
sustainable and healthy development of the Group. The Group
has in place procedures to comply with guidelines on anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing. Any suspicious
transactions would be notified and reported to the relevant governing
body by a responsible officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no
reported non-compliances of anti-corruption.

Community Investment

In order to be a good business leader, it is the Group’s belief
that it is fundamental to be a good community leader. The Group
sees this as a responsibility of being a successful company. As
such, the Group believes in giving back to the society. The Group
makes effect in evaluating community programmes that prompts
the same ideology of the Group and the Group makes substantial
monetary contribution. This year, the Group has donated a total
of RMB410,000 to various recognised charity organisations with
cultural, educational and health focuses. The beneficiaries include
‘WARERE, "RANEERRES’, "B IRAZEE” and
etc. The Group will continue to contribute to development of local
communities by supporting these and other similar organisations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENREBABERFS

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji (&3 £ ) , aged 52, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (#53%) , aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R B ¥H

A F]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 45 5 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)5 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (B IEKETH
fR 2 A]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({27 ) , aged 54, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for over 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (5 B # ), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in Computing
in the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and corporate
secretarial matters. He was the financial controller and company
secretary of Green Energy Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 979). He had held
senior management positions in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr. Yang Xuetai (#5522 KX), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012.

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Z=452%) , aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Liangping (2| R ) , aged 52, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of
umbrellas and the relevant products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 15 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” on pages 32 to 40 of this report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
20% (2019: approximately 18.1%) and approximately 73% (2019:
approximately 59.4%), respectively, of the Group’s total Revenue for
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 9% (2019: approximately 35.0%) and
approximately 25% (2019: approximately 53.4%), respectively, of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 168 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to
167 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in
note 35(B) and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns when its
dividend policy considers:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of the
Group;

° the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB370,000
(2019: approximately RMB310,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenii

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Huang Wenji and Mr. Yang Guang being executive
Directors, and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, being an independent non-executive
Director shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Weniji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2020.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive in the Company’s shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY

Name of Director

Mr. Huang Weniji (Note 1)

Number of issued

Nature of Interests  Capacity shares

Interest in a controlled
corporation and
beneficial owner

Long Position 2,462,818,000

BEXELE (M) HE WA EZER RS
ERBEEA

Mr. Yang Guang Long Position Beneficial owner
BREE HE ERBEA

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang Long Position Beneficial owner
MEEEE HE ERBEA

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Long Position Beneficial owner

Kenneth

BRIELE HE ERBEA

Mr. Tso Sze Wai Long Position Beneficial owner
BRALE HE ERBEA
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie  Long Position Beneficial owner
FREATT H#E ERBEA

Notes:

1 Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

2 Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang, Mr. Chung
Kin Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie
were granted the options under the share option scheme of
the Company on 14 May 2020 at an adjusted exercise price of
HK$0.464 per Share with the exercisable period from 14 May 2020
to 13 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

3. The number of issued shares and unlisted share options has been

adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on 6 July
2020.
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options

xEW

BREHE
(Note 2)

37,860,000

37,860,000
37,860,000

37,860,000

37,860,000

EEERE

REQRWETRE
Adjustment
on the number of
issued shares Approximately
and/or unlisted percentage of
share options Total shareholding
HERTRE
R/EARLEH
BRE R
HEZAE EFRESE
(Note 3)
(PEE3)

(2,375,644,100) 125,033,900 41.28%
(35,967,000) 1,893,000 0.63%
(35,967,000) 1,893,000 0.63%
(35,967,000) 1,893,000 0.63%
(35,967,000) 1,893,000 0.63%
(35,967,000) 1,893,000 0.63%

37,860,000
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Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this report, the persons or corporations who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

B EXWEEIN RARE B RRAAF]
RIBEH LB GRIIE2FAFENERL
AT RARBIRE TR MG AND ) K
RAE BBEEERARRAIETRAER
BESEBNBEARARNRR] S E DM
(EERESF LG GREIFEXVER) BB -
MBS EERET R AR AR -

FTERRNESZRKXE

MRAREBH U TALIOEBRR AR AR
BB P EAREBEE S LG ERIE
XV #B 552 %37 #B R XA [F AN 2 =) 5 78 s RC 8%
RIEBEF M BRI EIBIEREMFEE
e ESOX R

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity shares interested shareholding
EEng E8 ERtE E27) RGEHE HABREIH
Jicheng Investment Limited Long position Beneficial owner 123,140,900 40.66%
55 EnBEAA
Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) Long position Interest in a controlled 125,033,900 41.28%
corporation and
beneficial owner
BEXELSE (M) A REZHEB R R
EREBA
Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse 123,140,900 40.66%
BRERB AT (Fidsk2) HE LB =
Notes: B 5T
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Jicheng Investment Limited B & X £ A2

Mr. Huang Wenji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Wenji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO. In addition, Mr. Huang Weniji was granted the options under
the share option scheme of the Company on 14 May 2020.

2, Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenji
has interest under the SFO.

3} The number of issued shares and unlisted share options has been
adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on 6 July
2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except for those
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days
after the offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of
a share.
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The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share ~ FN&RIFFEARBBIRENRREE 2 &
options during the year:

Adjustment on

Adjusted the number of
Name or category of exercise price Ouistanding Granted  Exercised during Lapsed unlisted share Outstanding
participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKS) asat01.01.2020  during the year the year  during the year options  as at 31.12.2020
R®
R® b S 323

fE L bt St 22 HELH +=h
Eidi -B-8 ﬂﬁﬁ&‘&;&ﬁz Syr=[

SREZRAER RitiA fix:2: (1) HRTE FRERE FRETHE FREAH HRITE
(Note 3)

Category: Directors

B &3
Mr. Huang Wenji 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 - - (35,967,000) 1,893,000
ENERE ZZ-%F “Z-FHATRAZR
fAtRA “Z--FRA+=A
Mr. Yang Guang 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 S S (35,967,000) 1,893,000
Btk ZZ2%F ZZ-ZRATMAZE
RA+MA “E-ZFRA+=AH
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 - - (35,967,000) 1,893,000
mEgRE —%-% “Z-FHATRAZR
AA+REA “S--fnA+=A
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 - - (35,967,000) 1,893,000
Kenneth
ERERL —ECERE ZZ-TRATMAZ
fAtRA “Z--fnA+=A
Mr. Tso Sze Wai 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 S S (35,967,000) 1,893,000
BRERE it - 3:3 —ZZ-ZRATMAZE
AATEA “E-ZFRA+=A
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 37,860,000 - - (35,967,000) 1,893,000
Winnie
THEETT ka3 —“Z-ZRATMAZE
RA+MA —E--FRA1+=H
Category: Employees
g5l &8
Employees 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 - 151,440,000 S - (143,868,000 7,572,000
€& ZZ2%F —ZZ-ZRATMAZE
RA+MA “E-ZFRA+=A
Employees 10 April 2019 10 April 2019 to 0.900 375,000,000 - - - (356,250,000) 18,750,000
9 April 2029
EE 3 “Z-NFNATHE
MA+H —ECAEMANE
375,000,000 378,600,000 - - (715,920,000) 37,680,000
Note: Bt o
1 During the year ended 31 December 2020, the adjusted closing price 1 RNEE—_E-—FTF+_A=+—BIFE
of the Company’s shares immediately before 14 May 2020, the date AARBMHNRBEERERSIBHE T =
of grant of the share options, was HK$0.464. THFEAATEB AR EFAEKRTER0.464
AT e
2 No option was exercised during the year ended 31 December 2020. 2 BE_ZET-_ZEF+_A=+—HILEEX
TT@EEHE%HX% °
3. The exercise price and the number of share options granted has 3. BRENTEERMECEANR-ZZ_TF
been adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on Tt ARNBAERBRNEHIELAE-
6 July 2020.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 31.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 22 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 172,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

18 M B BLAT R
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Key audit matter
BREVER

Fair value measurement on contingent consideration payables

BAEAREZ 2 FETE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 E B HmERM 20 -

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of contingent consideration
payables was RMB13,991,000 and the Group recognised a gain
on fair value change of the contingent consideration payables of
RMB578,000 in profit or loss.

RZZEZZEFF+ZA=1+—HB ENIARENAFERARE
13,991,0007T ' AEERBERFRABENIARE 2 A FEZ B
z= AR #578,0007T

The measurement of fair value of the contingent consideration
payables involves significant degree of the management’s judgment.
ENHAREBNATEAELRERRE 2 ERHE -

Independent external valuation has been obtained in order to
support the management’s estimates.

EMBH LI EENSIFERE 2 A5t -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEREEBERELEHZARX

Our major audit procedures in relation to
the fair value measurement on contingent
consideration payables included the following:
BPRENIAREZRAFEFEZTER
RREFEIINT

We obtained and understood the Company’s
process regarding the determination of fair
value of contingent consideration payables;
BMEGSRTHR BEAREHETEREMN
FAREZ R FENIERF

We evaluated of the independent valuers’
competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity;
BMAEBEYHEM 2B 2B
UMREHL

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies and techniques
used in determining the fair value of
contingent consideration payables;

B EAREERNIAREBZ AT
ENRETERRMMOHES

We evaluated the appropriateness of
the judgment and estimates of key
assumptions used in determining the
fair value of contingent consideration
payables; and

B EAREERNIAREB AT
ERNBREREZHE REFOHES T
54

We checked, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.
BTSRRI ARR 2 £ R
MR -
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Key audit matter

HEERER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
ME BERIKEUAREAEEERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of RMB70,790,000 and right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB27,128,000 which were belongs to multiple
cash-generating units (‘CGUSs”).

RZBZZE+_A=+T—H E5EVE BEERZERARYK
70,790,0007T JA K2 {5t R # & £ #) A R #627,128,0007T * & 7 % ([
ReELBEN ([ReEEEN])-

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
recognised impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately RMB16,704,000 and
RMB6,403,000 respectively.
@E—%—ﬁiﬂ——ﬁ:ﬂ——atifg EXERRAME HBE R

BBAREREEEZBREEED I AK16,704,0007T kA
X #6,403,0007T °

For the purpose of the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, the Group had assessed the
discount cash flow of the Group for the recoverable amount of each
CGU at the end of the reporting period.

HOE - BERRBAREREEENRENGNS  NEEDET
MHREARSEREELESBMATKREFIBNMRBERE

We had identified impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter because
significant management judgment was required to determine the key
assumptions including estimated future income, operating margins
and discount rate, etc. and the amounts involved were significant.
BPEBME BERREAREBEEE 2 RETEED AR
REZFER REARETHERRE (BREMETREKA - LMHE
ERMREREZ)FEEBRBELERAGAMPEEE K-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEREEBERELEHEZARX

Our major audit procedures in relation to
impairment assessment of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
included the following:

BMEEME - BEREEARERAEEE
BENGNEEZEZETFEENUTEIE:

o We discussed with management as
to whether there was any indicator of
impairment;

e HMEEEEN®ESFHEETAIREDN
%

o We obtained and reviewed cash flow
forecasts relating to each CGU prepared
by management and approved by the
directors of the Company;

e HMIMELBFHEEERETL E4
RAEEHENAHASHReELEMNR
emETER

° We discussed with management in
relation to the methodology, basis and
assumptions used in arriving at the
forecasts (e.g. estimated sales growth
rate and discount rate etc.) to see
whether the methodology, data and
assumptions used were reasonable; and

e  HRMEFEEEMERFEAMABNITGE.

/‘i&@”“(ﬁﬂﬁuﬁﬁ’%i“ﬁf)&ﬁﬁiﬁ
HEFTEIRR AT BRFTR 770% - 8UR
)SZTE BEEBEE R

o We checked, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and reliance of the input data

used.
J ﬁzﬁ%ﬂﬂi REFTR AR CEBER
FE |V§E
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

18 M B BLAT R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Edmund with Practising Certificate number
P0O5333.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

22 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 ARET T ARBTTT
Revenue Wz 7 344,390 558,599
Cost of sales 8HE A (291,595) (492,738)
Gross profit EH 52,795 65,861
Other income and gains H A k= 7 1,240 10,041
(Reversal of)/impairment loss HEEEBEREER
recognised in respect of allowances (BmE) /JREEE:
for credit losses, net of reversal MEkREE 1,645 (113)
Impairment loss recognised MWE - -BERZEERZ
in respect of property, BEEE
plant and equipment (16,704) S
Impairment loss recognsied in HEAREERR
respect of right-of-use assets BEEE (6,403) -
Fair value change on contingent ERNFZAREZ
consideration payables NTEEZE 578 (7,497)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (21,249) (19,428)
Administrative expenses THMAX (40,034) (49,175)
Finance costs B SRR 9 (3,691) (11,130)
Loss before tax R B Al S 18 (31,823) (11,441)
Income tax expense PSR X 10 (2,489) (4,806)
Loss for the year attributable to ARAEEAEMERESE
owners of the Company 11 (34,312) (16,247)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hibz2m (BxX) WE
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMPHEEER B
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising REMBRREEZ
on translation of PE 3 = &
financial statements 9) 523
Total comprehensive expenses KRNBHEE AL
for the year attributable to FANEEMALEE
owners of the Company (34,321) (15,724)
(Restated)
(F&E7)
Loss per share BRER
Basic (RMB) HEAR(ARE) 12 (17.78) cents 77 (8.58) cents 77
Diluted (RMB) BE (ARE) 12 (17.78)cents 7  (8.58) cents %

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRR R

As at 31 December 2020 P —ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 16 70,790 92,681
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 27,128 34,467
Intangible assets EREE 18 1,650 1,847
Goodwill GRS 19 5,670 5,670
105,238 134,665
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 259,745 255,986
Trade receivables B 5 WA 22 49,433 177,706
Prepayment and other receivables TE AT R8I H Ath FE U RUR 23 52,233 67,552
Fixed time deposits EHFR 24 56,641 55,478
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB MRS 27 58,319 26,151
476,371 582,873
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B SN FIBERENEE 25 55,355 31,479
Accruals, other payables FEEER HEMENZIER
and contract liabilities EHEE 26 8,401 15,317
Bank borrowings RITIER 27 77,150 202,800
Tax payable FERT R TR 74 811
Contingent consideration payables FERT S ARA(E 20 13,991 =
154,971 250,407
Net current assets REBEEFE 321,400 332,466
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 426,638 467,131
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B E 28 a3 462
Contingent consideration payables FERT S AR(E 20 - 14,569
413 15,031
Net assets EEFE 426,225 452,100
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A R R

As at 31 December 2020 A —E -_FTF+_-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital A A 29 5,802 4,782
Reserves i 420,423 447318
Total equity SR 426,225 452,100

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised #GAMBHREAEEEeRN T -_TF =4
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2020 and are signed =+ —HBH#/ELTEETIZ WHUATRERE

on its behalf by: e
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEX&E Bk
Director Director
EE EE

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated  B&iff = B sE 8 Ak It S 45 & B B3Rk R 2 405K 36
financial statements. 3o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

Share Capital

Share Share  Translation Statutory option  contribution Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRE &4t
REx ROEE ERRE EERE it i  AHRE REEN  ExeE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETTT Fr ARETT ARETRT T
(Note b) Note c)
(Ft&Fb) )
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 4,782 120,161 2,424 39,649 - - 81,521 212,667 461,204
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (16,247)  (16,247)
Exchange differences arising MRRRBEEEY

on translation of financial ERESR

statements - - 523 - - - - - 523
Total comprehensive income/ ER2AENKE/

(expense) for the year (A%)eE - - 523 - - - - (16,247)  (15,724)
Transfer to statutory reserve Y - - - 858 - - S (858) =
Grant of share options RHBRE - = = = 6,620 = = = 6,620
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA

as at 1 January 2020 =t-RR=2=%

—-A-H 4,782 120,161 2,947 40,507 6,620 - 81,521 195,562 452,100
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (34312) (34,312)
Exchange differences arising BB RRMEEEL

on translation of financial ERER

statements - - ()] - - - - - 9
Total comprehensive expense FN2ERSSE

for the year - - 9 - - - - (34,312) (34,321)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEETRE - - - 761 - - - (761) -
Contribution from shareholders R - - - - - 215 - - 275
Issue of new shares BTk 1,020 5,355 - - - - - - 6,375
Grant of share options R BRE - - - - 1,7% - - - 1,7%
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-E%

+=-R=+-H 5,802 1255516 2,938 41,268 8,416 215 81,521 160,489 426,225
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

Notes:

(@)

68 CHINA

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
and increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over the
relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result
of the reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PEISKERERAF

B3

EERBEIEGOIR MEEZRARBHEHE
EFERBEPEARLNE ([FE])BEREE
BREAREBET EEARRNE RILER.
ZER B BERHE RSB ERIZIME A -

BrEfasEnARRBRR L AREBKR
REMA S A AT S 2 IR 2 AV E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

2020 2019

RMB 000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EZBHIRERE

Loss before tax B 0 A B 18 (31,823) (11,441)
Adjustments for: FE
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#E 197 120
Finance costs B 75 B AN 3,691 11,130
Bank interest income RITH BUA (758) (1,486)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- -BEREBINE
equipment 5,643 5,954
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 936 936
Government grants I8 7 7 B (482) (2,656)
(Reversal of)/impairment loss RIEHEEREEE ﬁ iy
recognised in respect of LEBMEERRL
financial assets under expected (BE) REEE
credit loss model, net FEE (1,645) 113
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BE R
plant and equipment i 2 E1E 5 10
Fair value change of ERAREZ
contingent consideration payables NEEZH (578) 7,497
Equity-settled share-based AR EE RN A
payment expenses AW REX 1,796 6,620
Impairment loss recognised in MEREEERR
respect of right-of-use assets HEEE 6,403 =
Impairment loss recognised in Y RE R E R
respect of property, plant and ZBEEE
equipment 16,704 S
Operating cash flows before LIEESFER
movements in working capital CIRERERE 89 16,797
Increase in inventories FEEm (3,759) (94,888)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 W IEE 129,919 66,453
Decrease in prepayment A RIE R E AL
and other receivables JFE Uk SR B R 15,336 33,665
Increase/(decrease) in trade Z S RN FIERENEE
and bills payables g/ CR) 23,876 (8,423)
(Increase)/decrease in accrued FEFtEMA - HAtb
expenses, other payables and ERFIEREHNEE
contract liabilities ($gm) R (6,734) 2,374
Cash generated from operations EEEEATSR S 158,727 15,978
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRRRECEMEH (3,275) (6,627)
Net cash generated from RETEMBESTFE
operating activities 155,452 9,351
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o IE%J}IEE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

REFHZRERE

WEEM R BB KR im

2020
—F-FF

RMB’000
AR®T

2019

—E—NF

RMB’000

ARBTT

equipment (898) (202)
Placement of fixed time deposits 15 B BR T 3K (11,163) (55,478)
Withdrawal of fixed time deposits REUE BiE R 10,000 57,450
Bank interest received EUERIT R & 758 1,486
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEWNBARES

a subsidiary e FE = 2,773)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEVE -BER

plant and equipment B2 FT1SRUE 437 9
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTA) g

investing activities REFHE (866) 492
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETECEERE

Proceeds from issues of shares BEITIRD FTIS F0E 6,375 =

Proceeds from new bank borrowings s IR ITIE R TS E 77,150 207,600

Repayment of bank borrowings EERITERK (202,800) (201,730)

Interest paid B2AFE (3,691) (10,182)

Contribution from shareholders TN 275 =

Government grants received B WBAT 47 B 482 2,656
Net cash used in financing activities METEFMAREFE (122,209) (1,656)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HEeERBASEEYIEMNTFEE 32,377 8,187
Cash and cash equivalents at HERUzRER

the beginning of the reporting period HE&EEY 26,151 17,352
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERSHTE (209) 612
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BEBRZEER

the reporting period RE&%EY
Bank balances and cash RITEHRMRS 58,319 26,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). lts ultimate holding company is Jicheng
Investment Limited a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liabilities and ultimate controlled
by Mr. Huang Weniji (“Mr. Huang”).

The address of the registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is engaged
in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacture and sales of umbrellas and
the relevant products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) since most of the subsidiaries are operating
in RMB environment and the functional currency of most of the
subsidiaries is RMB.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

—RER
RABRZE—HFEANATZAIREH
EHENFEERESHEAMK LA
BREBERARBERNDREBHER S
FIBR AR ([BARF]) B HHKE
% A &) A& Jicheng Investment Limited * 5%
NARNEBEZHE ([RBEXHE])
MK ZAERARBERENELE
(TERE]) B IRYEH -

=% 8 9% = BE #0 4t & Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands e R A RIR BB EE
EEME U N BB EEE 2755 BE A
REWAE - AR BIRERETEMR ME
EMBAREENFRERHENER
MHEER®-

ARRBzNeE®RAET([EBT]) - H
RRIBAMBRATRARYE (TARKE])
RERERABOIMBRARZYNEESR
BARE BEAMBREIAAREZ
bl

FE R #e] R ARER] & B BB |
EEA(TFEUMHREER])

(A) RAFEBFERZEERTE
BB REER

RAFE XEEBEBHRERH
EEGHMAG ([EEEFEA
g)EKRIR T -_TF—F—
Hakz &tz FEHEES £
M BBV B REERNGTIER
SIBZEBRIRATERTBRE
BRI Z B UmEEEMBR
*x:

BRGEREIRE EANESR
ER G ERIFSH:
(B3TA)

BRMBREER
F35 (BT A)

BB RS ER
FOW - BAGEA
FIOR BB
RELENETH

(BFTA)

FBNER

IEFEEs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

FE 3R] R RS ET B B B IS
EER(HERMBHREER])
(%)

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group'’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current
year. The amendments provide a new definition
of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature
or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context
of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued)

(b) Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
clarify that while businesses usually have outputs,
outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To
be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been
acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to
apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

FE 3R] R AAE R] B R B
EER(ERMBHREER])
(%)

(A) RAEFEBFERZEETE
BB EER (&)

h) EFEEHBEHREERZES
B (IBTER)EEHEZN
g
AEBRAFEEHRAERZ
FIEE] L FIERT MR - #A
X¥BBEABEL BEHR
—EEBRNESREEMS
THEEENMAI UK AE—E
XK -BWRAES FES
MN—HESHREEVNAEED
PERE—EEAR—EEEE
BRE - WEARBERES
8 EE R B

ZEEITBREMmSSEE
RELRBERNEEELE
HE R - ZFERTESIA
THEMER BRHREER
CERREEURRF-

BEAN - ZFERT Sl MBI
RN ESEFERR AT
EHMBEN—RINESH R
BERBTREB 2 G-
REEEZUEAFEETER
ACRFAKEBNEEE
BEE LB RAFEHERE
BEABMNEES —HEU
BER MZRHTE—A
X -FhAPcREETE
RREMREEEY BT
MAEEMAEERBRARE
MEEMELZHB B2
RPANEBEEETLET
EEREAFESTEAHA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued)

(b) Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business (continued)

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements, but may impact future periods should
the Group make any acquisition.

(¢) Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
modify specific hedge accounting requirements to
allow hedge accounting to continue for affected
hedges during the period of uncertainty before the
hedged items or hedging instruments affected by
the current interest rate benchmarks are amended
as a result of the on-going interest rate benchmark
reform. The amendments are relevant to the
Group given that it applies hedge accounting to its
benchmark interest rate exposures.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

(continued) (#&)
(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B)
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
BAMBHREEBITH

Amendment to HKFRS 16
BB HREERE165%
CEHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB %R E R E35%
(7T A)
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BB E R E 5
BB G EI95%

BV BHRELRIETSR

ARV B REERF45
REAVB@ELEL
F165% (BT A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BEM G HREERE105%
REAGFERFE28R
(fB3TA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERE1%R
(1&8ET4)
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB G ERIE1698
(fB3T4A)

Amendments to HKAS 37
BB G ERIEI7I
(fB3T4A)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB 5 RS 2R
(fB3T4A)

FERFE] RGBT ERMBER
EER(ERMBHREER])

B 95 45 480 1 oK 45 R 0 3 3T 2 48

BRI ERMIREER

AEBHARREFRA TS HEM
BRARERHTMEEFTEL

PR R

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments

R A K REBIER]

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
COVID-1918 R & &R

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
B MER 2zt

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

M REEN S —F R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEHREBENFNEECE L ENEELRE
FE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

ARSI ERBDEEDARETBRES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

(a) Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

- the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(@

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (continueq)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived
with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the event
occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance as
the Group does not intend to apply the practical
expedient.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

- update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2010 issued in October
2010);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework (continueq)

- add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and

- add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively
to business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

78  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR

FE 3R] R RS ET B B B IS
EER(HERMBHREER])

(%)

(B) T ZE M {E faf R A R HTRT R AR
BRI EBMIEREER (&)

(b)

BB BHEEREIN (15

TE)EHMELZRA

(%)

- AM—IEERAER
BR G ERFITH
Bim HARBEREIA
BEXER (BBRYH
hEREBLZES)-2
BEANRHELER
MR 5 R EALE M i
BIEREAEEES
R EITHRAEE (
BB RERERE
g)-2EF2RIK
FABE S HE 2R 2R B TE HL
EhRAHPAEN
BE R

—  ONINEARENEE - BN
BOITHERELES
HRBBNIAREE-

HRWEERR —T
—A—BEZRFARNE—
BAFEZHERBR B ZE
Ba ot AEBE S ATE L E
FERTA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(¢) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2 relate to the modification of
financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures to accompany
the amendments regarding modifications and
hedge accounting.

- Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. A practical
expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and made
on an economically equivalent basis).
These modifications are accounted for by
updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the
current HKFRSs requirements. A similar
practical expedient is proposed for lessee
accounting applying HKFRS 16;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(¢) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (continued)

Hedge accounting requirements. Under
the amendments, hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships
(and related documentation) are required
to be amended to reflect modifications to
the hedged item, hedging instrument and
hedged risk. Amended hedging relationships
should meet all qualifying criteria to apply
hedge accounting, including effectiveness
requirements; and

Disclosures. The amendments require
disclosures in order to allow users to
understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform to which the Group is exposed to
and how the entity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning
from interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing this transition.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(d) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in
a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(e) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

U)

the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within
12 months; and

if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(e) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (continued)

- clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity‘s
own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-
current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS
1 to align the corresponding wordings with no
change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2020, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group's liabilities.

() Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

The annual improvements make amendments to
the following standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes
only fees paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or the lender on the other's
behalf.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FEAHIIRKEBITIE BB R

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

() Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement relating
to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
by removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of
HKAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and
by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF 3.

PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueaq)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for contingent consideration
payables that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equal the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’%',%'_A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

Ff 7% % 3% B =

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF 3.

PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuedq)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continueq)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except

that:

TESEHHRRBE (&)

EBa6t (&)

RUEE BB - P AR BE BT BRI B B N PR
BEABRATETIARER MH:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as gain on bargain purchase.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting period and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting period, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) (or
group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the cash-generating
unit within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis
of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of
and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continueq)

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are recognised
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
LEASES HE
Definition of a lease HEZESH

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUSs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

Ff 7% % 3% B =

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (‘ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from ultimate
holding company, fixed time deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(it

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’%:_A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses, other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

These include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good before
that good is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good provided by another party before that good is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The normal
credit term is up to 30 =150 days upon delivery.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
TAXATION (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes operated by the government
of the PRC is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO CONSULTANTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(8) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL VERSUS AGENT CONSIDERATION

The Group engages in sales of umbrellas and the relevant
products. The Group concluded that the Group acts as the
principal for such transactions as it controls the specified
good before it is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods.
The Group has inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue
in the gross amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised revenue relating to trading of umbrella
and the relevant products amounted to approximately
RMB344,390,000 (2019: RMB558,599,000).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4. FEEtHERAIAEEM

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. An estimation of the value in use of the CGU
involves estimating the future cash flows expected to arise
from its continuing use and applying the appropriate discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses
provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables
which are individually insignificant. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision for
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year
in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z= —

& MRS AR MY RE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes contingent consideration payables, bills payables and
bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash, and equity
attributable to the owner of the Company, which comprises
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of the existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

EXERERE

AEBEEEEAUABRASENER
ARELE WEBBIER RERSS
ﬁ%z%ﬂxﬁmxﬁ*k@#ﬁz AEBEZERE
REEBEFERFTIE -

D\E

AEENEARBEREEHRZFR (21
e ARE RN RBERRITER)
MR RITEBRIREARRRBEEA
G (BREBTRAREHE) -

EXTHRAERNRBE -ERZBEH
—H EFEREAKNAREEER
MAERR NEERRBEES ZHEE
EREBIMNRE BHITHRREITH
ERHBOREGEE FTHEEREAR

2020

—ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Total debts (note) B a%E (M) 145,784 247,819
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReERREEEY (58,319) (26,151)
Net debt [E e 87,465 221,668
Total equity G ey e 426,225 452,100
Net debt to equity ratio FEEEREE 21% 49%
Total debts to equity ratio wEEEREE 34% 55%

Note: Total debts comprise contingent consideration payables, bills MiE: BERABEREEEMBREME

20 25 %275 )'jjUﬁLEl'JFEﬁjZ%ﬁ
B BNZEERRITER

payables, and bank borrowings as detailed in notes 20, 25 and
27 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

“EF+ A=+ HLFE

6. €mIA
(A)

SRMITENER

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Amortised cost B SH K AN 181,928 261,287
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost BESHRK AN 139,304 248,935
Contingent consideration payables ERT S AKRE 13,991 14,569
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) HMERMREZEBEREE
POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade TEENTESHTABEES
receivables, other receivables, amount due from FE U SR TE - H R U RTE - R

ultimate holding Company, fixed time deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses, other payables, bank borrowings and
contingent consideration payables. Details of the financial
instruments for the Group are disclosed in respective
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollar (*USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.

Also, certain trade receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, accrued expenses and
other payables are denominated in USD, JPY and HKD
which are currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities. The carrying amounts
of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities of the Group at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

6. E®IHA#)

(B)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

5

B R
AEBEANUEXT([ET]) B
(MBxhHRET(ETDFEZ
SNEEE ZEEETRANAEHE
ERETRH 2T -

BESh BT B S EUGRIE  RITA
#EAS BEHERNRARENER
%~ AT B R R ELAD FE A5 SRIR T IA
X -HRKkETAE ET A
TERAETAEFHASEER Y
BEEH - RE BN S IR AIMNE
AEZEREENERREZK
E{ET :

Assets Liabilities
BE =K

2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NEF ZB-EF —ZT—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®¥TR AR®ETT
UsD o 39,297 152,928 - 177
JPY = 966 13,500 - 47
HKD BT 2,055 714 3,158 5,445

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax (loss)/profit where USD, JPY and
HKD strengthen 5% against the functional currency.
For a 5% weakens of USD, JPY and HKD against the
functional currency, there would be an equal or opposite
impact on the profit and other equity and the balances
below would be negative.

Impact on loss for the year

usD ETT
JPY Bt
HKD BT

TWMIA %)

BEERREEZEERBE (£)

TS mE (&)

EXmE (&)

BB
AEBTIEmMEXT BTRET
SN LB

TREINABEHEANEESE X
T ATRBTENEER A ES
B2 {E5% < BRRE R 15 - 6% JhAE
ZEEABAR2WMINERRIK
RZBRELE IRREEEY
SNETERATE R RE B B 2 FFMh - B
RESTEBRFEAINEHEZ
AXNE®ER IRIREHR
FLOMNE IE K5% 2 HB)HEEIEN -
THZE#RRRET BTRAET
R B THES% - BRTIL (B
8) aAMEmex BT kg
TLRA I BEE M B (B5% B - 1 ¥
MEEtERASEERRZY
E MUATESHRBERBEH

HENEBZRE
2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
1,460 5,728
36 504
) (177)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continueq)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed time deposits and fixed rate bank borrowings
(see notes 24 and 27 for details respectively). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 24 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, amount due from ultimate holding company
other receivables, fixed time deposits and bank balances.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk, which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising
from the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group deposited fixed time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause
the Group’s right with respect to fixed time deposits
and bank balances held to be delayed or limited. The
directors monitor the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 were minimal.

124 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PEISKERERAF

6.

TWMIA &)

(B)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

TR (E)

FIF 2
AEBZAFEMNERREREEHE
THERNTEBRITER (F58
DRI M 24 R27) B - N &
B I8 B 30 48 FI) RSP ERR - AT
TEEEENEER WBEREE
AFERE BEEEMMBE T
@Jo

AEEBzRERENEEREER
B BIRTTHER (BRZFEHRLZ
HEFE2HNE24)BE - AR
BRITERNEHAIE BZF
RITEBRZ N RERRE

EEEER & E T
AEENEERBRETZEFEFAR
SIENGRIA - B GREIEIR A AR
I8 - H A e SRR - E HAE R R
TR NEBEYF HRERIT
BEES ARG BE XM BB K&
ENEsEERREERGEH
BHRARFESECEREMEE
WEREE - NE B EFFEAE
Hmk EE B RE U R E
TRMEEMRB  EERRBRERRK
R o

I

\

s

REBBEREREBITERT
ANERZER M BIRIT  RITIRE K
mAOBEGERESAEBEET@AE
TEHRTF R R SR 1T 45 R O 1 1) T 3B
NERE c EERFEEEZERT
MERATFA ITRAEAEER =
E_TFF+_A=ZF+—AHEKZZFT
—hWE+-_A=+—HFEBED
FEERRERIE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

For amount due from ultimate holding company and
other receivables, the directors make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of other
receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group consist of a large number
of customers and spread across geographical areas.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
take.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances based on
provision matrix. The trade receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired).

6. TMIA (&)

(B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

(B)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueqd)
As at 31 December 2020

TWMIA &)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

=B R R B EFE (E)
R-B-Z2F+=-A=t—H

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHIEE R RE#E EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BaL AR%T AR T
Not yet due i 7 480 B - 37,943 -
1-90 days past due B HEAI1 = 90K 0.09 11,595 105
49,538 105

As at 31 December 2019

RZE—NF+=-A=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TEHA e 1B & FREEE BB
% RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bkt ARBET T ARBET T
Not yet due i) 7 481 2 - 92,766 =
1-90 days past due BHEI1E90K 2.01 86,690 1,750
179,456 1,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

The expected loss rate are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group provided approximately RMB105,000 (2019:
RMB1,750,000) impairment allowance for trade
receivables, based on the provision matrix.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

6. TMIA (&)

(B)

BEERREEZEERBE (£)

=B R R ETFE (E)

EHERXDERBEHANBE
BR2OXNERFEREMG
BOUHHAEMEER (BFIEE
BERARIE BN ER ) ETH
BB EE Bt 08 NER
EH AR EBHANBBEESR -

BT -_ZTF+-_A=+—H
IFFE NREBERBHFHEEIR
BHREWFEBRNBRERBEOAR
105,000 (ZE—NE: AR
#1,750,0007T ) °

TREIIRBOEE 5 EIK
HREANZHBRREEERES-

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

ZHEHE

BEiE

(EEERE)

RMB’'000

AREF T

As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 1,637

Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE 1,750

Impairment loss reversed VEREEiEEdE (1,637)
As at 31 December 2019 and as at 1 January 2020 R-_Z— A&+ _A=+—HxX

—T-FEF—-H—H 1,750

Impairment loss recognised EHERBEEE 105

Impairment loss reversed VEREY=EiEEdE (1,750)

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-BHF+=-HA=+—-H 105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

6.

Ff 7% % 3% B =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueqd)

The Group categories trade or other receivables for
write off when a customer or debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of
approximately RMB77,150,000 (2019: RMB54,000,000).

128 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PEISKERERAF

6.

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

TWMIA &)

(B)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

=B R R B EFE (E)
ZSE@EAE}Eiﬁ%%/\ﬁiQEf’EHj
B K TR B 5 3k H Al e R
IELTT"*ELM’EW% fia 1 55 &
S E A WGRIR  AEE A
TR ITIE B AN E lJH;ﬁE!’JJEH&
R - i i @ - RIRR & R E R

AEBTEEMEREFEER

Be-REEERRE AR

%%fi/miﬂﬁiﬂ Z’S%%?ﬁ
NEFReMReEEYRER

B AR AR AR BB 2 K
FORERSRERD L HE-E
EEERBTHRZDAERL
ARG A BRI -

REBERERITEREARDE
EHEBRBE-R_E_ZEF+—
A=+—H8 A&£EBABHNRY
BREBERTEIBRENAARE
77,150,000t (ZE— L F: AR
#54,000,0007T ) °



6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

TWMIA %)

(B) MEBEMEEEERBER (&)
mBELEE (E)
TERREZTEEMRFIASE

BETEESRABZIHR TGO
HIEI - AR IIRBEAEEAMN K
ZEFEHRZERABEZIARTR
ReREMER ZREENBER

AeHERE-

As at 31 December 2020
R-ZEBEZZEHF+-A=+-—H

On demand Total
or within undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
BEERHR AFBREE
1R 2ZE5F TREARE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE AR%Trn ARBTR AR¥TxR
Non-derivative financial FTESRMEE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables BHENTER
NESE 55,355 - 55,355 55,355
Accruals expense and FEETE A R EAM
other payables PR FIR 6,799 - 6,799 6,799
Bank borrowings RITIER 77,150 - 77,150 77,150
Contingent consideration {8 AR (B
payables 13,991 - 13,991 13,991
Total HEt 153,295 - 153,295 153,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6. €®MIA#)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HHEREEEEZERBE (£)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) FEBELEE ()
As at 31 December 2019
R-ZB-AE+=-A=+—H
On demand Total
or within undiscounted Carrying

1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
RERZR RTERE
15/ 225 R REARH AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TE AR%¥Trn AR®BTn AR%¥Tx

Non-derivative financial FTESRERE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables BHRNFIER
ARE 31,479 - 31,479 31,479
Accruals expense and FERT & B K& EAh
other payables eI 14,656 = 14,656 14,656
Bank borrowings RITEK 202,800 - 202,800 202,800
Contingent consideration ~ [EfF sk AN (E
payables - 14,569 14,569 14,569
Total st 248,935 14,569 263,504 263,504
(C) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS C) EMIENAFEE
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses HE A FER AEEREFEAT
market-observable data to the extent it is available. 5 Pl R BUE - RBEEUIS B — &
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group ANEFR RAEBEGZRETEER
engages independent qualified valuers to perform the HEMETHE BBEERZEE
valuation. The management works closely with the BHNEGHEMEZEE BALBEE
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate HERMTEZER 2B AEB BE
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The BREmREHRMESERAH
management reports the findings to the directors at the HER UBEEEATEEBZR
end of each reporting period to explain the cause of A -

fluctuations in fair value of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which market
data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

6. TMIA (&)

(€)

TBMTANDIFEE)

TREJNAEERHFEMRIZE
FEEFENERIANAFE"
HETVREBW B RS ERFI13HR
RFEAEMATEDR=ZAR
FEER R FEFEEDOER
Ty 2 2 {HE B0 P A & A B HY
IEREREZRETNT

s FARMBEEEAFE-R
wWABFENRFE AIA
REEXBBENTERHR
BT IS R EHBRE:

s F_AMBE:ERF_MH
AEBFENRFE BT
BE—ANAUBEHAERR
WEERAERTAIBEREA
BE-TABRBABEATS
BB TARANBAR: &

s FZAME:EREATH
BRGAEBFENQTE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E-& B= Fo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT AR¥®Tn AR%¥Txn
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
+=A=+-AH
Fair value on on a recurring BEERENEY
basis AR}
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R AFEFT A
ERfNer8E
— Contingent consideration — N HARE
payables - - 13,991 13,991
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF
+ZA=+—8
Fair value on on a recurring BEERENEY
basis ARSI}
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 32 A FEFT A
BRfer8E
— Contingent consideration — N HARE
payables - 14,569 14,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6. €®MIA#)

(C) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (C)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into
or out of level 3.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of
contingent consideration payables which are classified as
level 3 category for the year ended 31 December 2020:

EBMITANDFEE)

ARG 2 BUR R TR B
ZEHABRESHHRZ BER
RE A FEEREREERE-

Hz—_2-ZF+=-_A=+—H
IFE F—REF-_FHHETE
EE R EBARELE=H-

TREHEE_ZT_TF+ A
—t+—HULEFE DEAE=HZ
ERNSAREHATEE

RMB’000

AREFTT

As at 1 January 2019 RZTE—-—NF—-—HA—H -
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Ue BB BB A R FTE A (MIzES1) 6,441
Loss arising on change in fair value N EEHEENEE 7,497
Others HAfb 631
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NAF+A=+—H 14,569
Gain arising on change in fair value ANFEEHEEANKE (578)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+=-A=+—H 13,991

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

BEHE=RLFETEHNEH

unobservable inputs to fair value

EXRT
BREaAER
NP ENEE

The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to
the expected net profit

Valuation Significant unobservable  Relation of significant
techniques input
EART
fRE M BEBAE
Contingent consideration Monte Carlo Expected net profit
receivables Simulation method
WS AR(E SRERBREE FEERAL R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the management
work closely with International Valuation Limited (“IVL”) to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The management reports the findings
to the directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the above fair value are disclosed
above.

Fair value change on contingent consideration payables
are separated disclosed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

6. TMIA (&)

(€)

TBMTANDIFEE)

FEHE=RLAFHEHSEHEHN
(&)

B BENRAFER EEERS
R BERAR ([BERFEAR
RADEZAE BUBEMGE
it kR ZBAE - EEER
EWMEPRAEFERBIFER
NRBEENTEKSZREA-

BE LA TERERNGEER
iy 70 1 A B B AR BE B B0 £ SCH

Zo

ENIARENRFEEZINE
AHEBELREMEERERTES
IR

WHBERFEFSEHNEHEER
BEEHAFE
EZARNEAMBRAPHER
MeEREERTBAENEKREE
BEHENFERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

(I) REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

()

HERSRMEMRE®D

Sales of umbrellas and
the relevant products

Wz e EL At A K Wi 2%

BEFEH WS

2020 2019
—E—NF
RMB’000

ARETTT

—g-%%

—

RMB’000
AR®TR

344,390 558,599

RSN
i i B4

Timing of revenue recognition
A point in time

2020
—g-%f

—ir—=

2019
—E-nF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®TR

344,390 558,599

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contract for
umbrella and the relevant products such that the Group
does not disclose information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contract for sales of
umbrella and the relevant products that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

(I) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(I

PHEERAEFENHFGEAN %
BHHXEZ
AEBEEAEERS R MERMEM®H
ERNPERBEBMBHREER
FIREI2IR PN ERERL
it B A Ein R K EHHR
B—FHIUTHREREEES®
HEBNTRBENRRE K
SETEREARASREARK
e as 0 B o

HAb WA K Wz

2020

—B-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREF T
Bank interest income RITF B YA 758 1,486
Government grants (note) BE# B (MI5E) 482 2,656
Exchange gain [ 5 W a - 5,889
Others Hit - 10
1,240 10,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
(I) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, government grants
of approximately RMB482,000 (2019: RMB2,656,000) were
received, where the Group had fulfilled the relevant criteria,
in respect of certain research and development projects
and employment support scheme. These were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, the
manufacture and sales of umbrellas and the relevant products.
Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors. No
segment assets, liabilities and other segment information in
the measure of Group’s segment result and segment assets
are presented as the information is not reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
POE umbrella, nylon umbrella and umbrella parts. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue by product category is as follows:

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

“EF+ A=+ HLFE

Wi B H A WA R W g (47)

m EHaBARkzs (&)
B -

BHE-_ZT-ZTF+ZA=+—81
FE BERBRZEFHEBOOAAR
#482,000L (ZE—NF AR
2,656,0007T) * E & ANEIE?KA**
TFiHEIEE Rt EM B 2 BHSE
14 B2 2% ST BY B B B0 R IE AR K
el A EIE -

2EHEFR

AEBEKEE - NRERHEEN
PREEER SCED I HIRERET
FTELBBRRE([TBEERKSE])
ZAEHRE B2 TRER Eﬁ%

BRI HMEED BRI EBEER
REREREZG -FERERZHE
EBERDHEERWEZINHBEE -

BREREMDEER - LTy BRI &
ﬁﬁ TR R R BRI ER S ERRE
REBBER -

EmEHR
AEBERERENHEPOERSR JERE
MR RRRETEMF - NEEIZE MBS
Sz WEDIWFAT

2020 2019

—7— ﬂE :9_3—7‘1{25'5

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

POE umbrella POE FE %2 65,990 119,801
Nylon umbrella JERER 149,022 178,806
Umbrella parts MR Z M4 129,378 259,992
344,390 558,599
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. oIER (&)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION #h & & H

AEEZEEMNTE AT EZ7)
BRAAKESERBEENBREFR 1
W BB ARER BTS2 Wk
EHZ DRl T -

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, accordingly,
no geographical information about the Group’s non-current
assets has been presented. An analysis of the Group’s revenue
from external customers presented by geographical location is
detailed below:

pA70) 2019
—g-®F —Z-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Japan AR 113,728 167,572
PRC H 54,074 91,345
Kingdom of Cambodia RIFEET 131,787 173,760
Europe B 2,575 29,742
Republic of Korea [ 40,458 39,011
Republic of the Philippines JERE KA - 46,769
Other Asian countries Hab MBI =R 1,610 4172
Others HAith 158 6,228

344,390 558,599

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS ERETEEFZEH

BEREAEERFI0%HA 2R Z

Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more

of the Group’s revenue are as follows: FFIEMT
2020 2019
—E-sF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Customer A =EFEA 67,596 101,101
Customer B =FB 70,640 94,739
Customer C EFC 61,147 79,021

Except disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10%

or more to the Group’s revenue for both years.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

9. BB

THREZHBFX

2020
—E-BF

Ry e

2019
—T—NF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®T R

— bank borrowings —IRITIEFX 3,691 10,499

— others —Hfb = 631
3,691 11,130

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FrSHiRxX
2020 2019
—E-EHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI EMEH

— current tax —BNEARL I8 2,538 4,836
2,538 4,836
Deferred tax credit EIEF A % (49) (30)
2,489 4,806

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7)
Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

(i)

RERSHSEREABREIEEZ
MAIRIER - AEEBAMMN M
HERELEBRABE ZME
e

BEAENFEERN _TE—N\F=ZA
“+-BRB-ZT—+FERHBE (&
1) (B7THRIEHME R ([ K5
BR]) S| AFSH ARG 5% 1&
MERARZE—N\F=ZA=+N
AEEBES TR BAEER
FZ-REBEFESHARS 5 E%
£ EEE51%8.25% 2 T R gh i
FlE2E 8B THMIRIE W ig%
16.5% < T KB BR2E EH L2
i M BT TE - A MBS MR
FIERZEBERAEFBEE
1216.5% 2 B G IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.

(i)  (continued)

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group’s income neither arises in,
nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

(i) Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

gy A D)
iy (%)

HERA - BIEAIEBARSFS
R eHERRANERRLES
AW Bt - A E BB
18 BRI B BR R 2 16.5%
e

MRZMEFEARELRRNE
BEEREFTARA BAE
BNERELRE-

iy WEBEPECEMAEVEAREER
BERZEES - FEMERRR
% (B [ TR R 15 325% °

FAMSHAXAGEBREREBEE
Wtk < BRI RI R RE RN T :

2020 2019
—EB-FF —F-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTIT

Loss before tax FRELATE B (31,823) (11,441)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable ZEAREEREERN

to the jurisdictions concerned MEFERTIE (8,068) (1,812)
Tax effect of: M2 -
Income not taxable for tax purpose BAZRHKA (755) (371)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7~ 7] #1554 5 5% 6,433 4,818
Estimated tax loss not recognised RIER Z T HIEEE 4,879 2,171
Income tax expense for the year FAMERAYS 2,489 4,806

138 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR



11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Wages, salaries and allowances

1. FAEE

I& % lko2ih

FRRBBENR (5A) FHERR
B

2020
—g-%%

—

2019

RMB’000
AR®T T

RMB’000
N

(excluding directors’ emoluments) (T"EREEFHE) 46,344 68,427
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & R 18 F 51 21 3%

(excluding directors) (TBEESE) 5,502 13,391
Equity-settled share-based payment UESEE RN A

expenses AL zAX 1,796 6,620
Total staff costs BIXAEHE 53,642 88,438
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 291,595 492,738
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREBEZEE

plant and equipment 5 10
Depreciation of property, W BE REETE

plant and equipment 5,643 5,954
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEAETE 936 936
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEH 197 120
Fair value change on contingent ERSRAREZ AT EZE)

consideration payables 578 7,497
Exchange (loss)/gain, net BN (BR) S8 1,117) 5,889
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ REEEERBRERZ

impairment loss recognised CREBERR)

in respect of allowance BEEE R EE

for credit losses, net of reversal (1,645) 113
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FL¥IE BB MR BEERZ

property, plant and equipment BEEE 16,704 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FL{E gL EHER 2

right-of-use assets BIEE1E 6,403 -
Research and development expenses e (M)

(note) 11,627 9,273
Operating lease rental relating to FHRCHHE KEHe

short-term lease 10 28
Auditor’s remuneration: ZER €
— audit services — B ZR S 489 671
— non-audit services — TR 89 135

578 806

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, included

in the research and development expenses was
approximately RMB1,567,000 (2019: RMB1,547,000)

related to staff cost.

i :

BHE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—H
LEE FAHERIZEIAAR
#B AR ¥1,567,000t (ZZE— A,
& AR#E1,547,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BRER
ARBERANBENERERREETE
BIRBEATBEE:

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic and REBREAREEEEMEN

diluted loss per share (loss for the year 518 (ANQ B A A (L

attributable to owners of the Company)  F/EE1#E)

(34,312) (16,247)

Number of shares RAEAE

Weighted average number of RIETEEREERR
ordinary shares for the purpose of BEHBENLTBER
basic and diluted loss per share nEFE

192,930 189,300

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
calculation, the exercise of the above potential dilutive shares
is not assumed in the calculation of diluted loss per share for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted
for the share consolidation which took place on 6 July 2020.

140 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR

HE_Z2_Z2FEK_F—NLF+=A
T+ BLFEEREAREEEER
@o

A2 B MR AT 6 2 AR (3R
HEREABEZHEABREEYE
A HBRE-_B_BFR-B-NF
+ZASt-BEE2 ERETER
B R LT E R 1D S T4

REREAREEEEMS S _-F
“EELANBEENBRDAHBARY
BAINFE 8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S (A)
EMOLUMENTS

13. EE THARKREENS

EERTHRARHE

FRARARRES (BRETHRAR
(MTB#EE]) ) BN REMN 2 B
TREWMT:

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) for the year are as follows:

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Salaries and other operations

Share base payment Total

FEeRRMEE BRI B NRBRERNAR @3t
2020 2019 2020 2020 2019 2020
ce-er L S ¥ So8E ST-AF CR0RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of director ARET R . ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARET)
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Huang BEAE - - 600 600 9 9 187 - 79 609
Yang Guang B - - 30 360 7 7 187 = 554 367
Lin Zhenshuang mEE - - 360 350 4 4 187 - 551 354
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth {21k 160 161 - - - - 187 = 7 161
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TER 160 159 - - - - 187 - a1 159
Yang Xuetai BEX 60 60 - - - - - - 267 60
Tso Sze Wa iy 160 159 - - - - 187 - a7 159
540 539 1,320 1,310 20 20 1122 - 3,189 1,869

Mr. Huang is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or CEO as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BERENBRNRRITHRAE - XX
B BREEETBARMMEHRR
BoME -

REEWES N T EFTRITRAEE -
ERBREMAREE SR MARKEIEL
B MERBERZAE - ZWEF
B BESEFXNTHAIMELRER
RIEMBE -

RRBHRANRAME R BB ER] 7 EA
SEEXBEHAALREENETEE
FEEEEER R AN AFERIANF
BEMSHEIDER RS R RGH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2019: zero)
directors. The emoluments payable to the remaining
zero (2019: five) individuals during the year which are
employees were as follows:

13. EE THRAIAREEMSE (&)

(B)

EFERSHFMAL

AEERAEELEESFMAL
BREAR(ZE-NF - TR)E
Z-FARNEBKBZTE(ZE—N
F-AB)ALT(EE)OBE W
T

2020 2019

—2-FF —FNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%BTR AR T T

Salaries and other allowances e REAMERL — 284
Equity-settled share-based payment — JARE# &8 B LAR (D /2 2558

expenses 2 FFEX - 3.310

Retirement benefits scheme RREFET B
contributions = 20
- 3,614

During the year, certain directors, non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 30.

The aggregated emoluments of each of the remaining
zero (2019: five) highest paid individuals fell within the
following bands:

Nil to HKD1,000,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

FAREBEARABERESS &
TEF FEFHRIFTRAMNK
= #r R B B A AN = B R A0 A
R R - BB AT 81158
KRG BT 3R P ES0

EHRZTR(ZTE-NF AR)K
FMALHWAFMNTATE

Number of individuals
A

2020
=F L1 ¥

—iir—

2019
—E—NF

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

14. DIVIDEND

15.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2019: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(@)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”), and this
is the only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme to make the required contribution. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the specified
contributions under the schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The total expense recognised in consolidated profit or loss

of approximately RMB5,528,000 (2019: RMB13,411,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

14.

15.

RS

FABERN S EZ RN RABE
SHRREFSFARER KM EMK
“E-NEFE)

iR K18 A 5t &

@ AEBEREFERINELESH
SR T - e b Rt e
SMmEERAEEEESHEE
PTHBYSTEAESERE -RIE
BIESTE BEAKRE AH5%
s PR & & 1,500/ T e 20
WAl B IBIEHEIMER - BEWNF
AERFIZEB AFHY R LR &S
1,500/ 7ot & ([98Hl 1Rl ) -
it BANEBERESE S EE
HRERRAM—E T 8165
BRI BT 28k T 1ERE
FrEEERS 2 ME R FI MR-

#w
s
B

b)) AEENFTENMNBEARNEEZR
HAERFEENEREENR
K&t -HMBARERF KA
BT E D AR KR FIETEI1E
HER e REBBPBRBFLEN
RIKEFENE—BETARE
ZEtBlEREEET - BAREE
BEt Ad825 -

REEETTEINEASIOABAR
5,528,000 (ZE—NE: AR
13,411,0007T) ' AAEEREE T =
EF+ A=+ —HILFERFEREL
EEMLRMZETEI AR MHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% BEKRRHE
Construction in Machinery and Motor
Buildings progress equipment vehicles Total
BT ERIR BERRE RE b
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETFT ARBTT ARBTT
Cost HA
As at 1 January 2019 WZE-NF-F-H 122,804 - 36,290 3,758 162,852
Acquisttion of a subsidiary WE—EREAR - - 20 - 20
Additions during the year REERE - - 202 - 202
Disposals during the year TEELE - - 91) &) 94)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE
asat 1 January 2020 +ZA=1+-Bk
“Z-ZF¥-f-H 122,304 - 36,421 3,755 162,980
Additions during the year REERE - 46 80 m 898
Disposals during the year rEELE - - (2852) (565) (3417)
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-TH+2A
=1+-A 122,804 446 33,649 3,562 160,461
Accumulated depreciation ZHFE
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—-A—-H 35,774 = 27,726 920 64,420
Charge for the year FRZM 4,406 = 1,192 356 5,954
Eliminated on disposals I E R 8 5 5 (72) () (75)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NEF+ZA
asat 1 January 2020 ST-BRZZCEE
—A—A 40,180 - 28,846 1,273 70,299
Charge for the year FRLH 4,406 - 895 342 5,643
Eliminated on disposals R 8 - - (2,565) (#10) (2975)
Impairment loss recognised ERARESR 12,820 - 3512 312 16,704
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZTE+2A
=1+-H 57,406 - 30,688 1,677 89,671
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 December 2020 W-E-Z5+-H
=1+-AH 65,398 446 2,961 1,985 70,790
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA
=t-H 82,624 - 7,575 2,482 92,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the follow rates per annum:

Over the shorter of term of
the lease or 2.5%

10%-25%

10%-33%

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

As at 31 December 2020, buildings with carrying amounts
of approximately RMB5,149,000 (2019: RMB59,807,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

“EF+ A=+ HLFE

16. % BMERRE &)

L BERZEER (EFEIRE

BROMNIEEGEATIF R EINE

gF FAHA52.5% °
A E A%

MR EEE  10% 225%

=] 10% Z=33%

R-ZE-TE+-_A=+—8 EEE
45 AR #5149,0007T (ZFE— AL 4F:
AR #59,807,00070) 2 #FE I 1E
AEREBERBITREZER

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. ERREEE

Leasehold land

HE T

RMB’000

ARBTT

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—H—HNEREE 35,403

Depreciation charge TERLZ (936)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H

—E-_FTF—H—H 34,467

Depreciation charge TERX (936)

Impairment loss BEEE (6,403)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+=-A=+—H

y EEETE 27,128

THEETHEE T HHERmMENRE
HERBMRABEIEMRNPE K&
Iﬁ'ﬁ‘iiﬁﬂ SrMMERET - —XB

The carrying amount of the leasehold land is located in the
PRC under the medium-term lease where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located and office buildings. The Group

is the registered owner of these leasehold land. Lump sum BEEMHRIB URELANEELTEE
payments were made upfront to acquire these property ZEYEELR BIRE T HHESEHRE
interests from their previous owners, and there are no longer JA BT SR AR IR AR BE B B0 T RR R Y

F&FR T BB TRBR I o 5% 35 A9 TR BB s
M A FHEBERASBM-E

payments to be made under the term of the land lease, other
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant

government authorities. These payments vary from time to ENREATESERN ZSEEMED
time and are payable to the relevant government authorities. HELHAD FAERZET-

The leasehold land components of these owned properties
are presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.

As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land with carrying amount NR_E_FF+_H=+— EI IREE
of approximately RMB9,238,000 (2019: RMB29,865,000) 45 AR 19,238,000 (ZZE— NF:
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the A R #29,865,0007T ) 2 & i B 3K
Group. FRIERAREERRITHIE 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &E
Customers’
relationship
EPEER
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019 and RZE—h&E—A—H"
as at 1 January 2020 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H
;k—Z_2F—-H—H 1,967
As at 31 December 2020 W_ZE_TF+_H=+—H 1,967
Accumulated amortisation Rt
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-hF—H—H =
Charge for the year FARZMH 120
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE—hhF+ZA=Z=+—HK
—ET-_ETF—-H—H 120
Charge for the year FAZ M 197
As at 31 December 2020 WR_ZE_TF+-_H=+—H 317
Carrying amount EEEE
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B=-ZEH+=-A=+—H 1,650
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—-—hF+=—A=+—8H 1,847
Customers’ relationship has finite useful lives and are amortised EFPBARNERASHAER  LAM0FA
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. WE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

19. GOODWILL

Cost
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019 and
as at 1 January 2020

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

“EF+ A=+ HLFE

19. &
RMB’000

ARBTT

B A
EC/FSﬂiHEI

—NE+-HA=+—~H

&_7_7¢ A—H 5,670
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_TF+_HA=+—H 5,670
Accumulated impairment EHRE
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019, R-ZZE—HhLhFE—A—H"
as at 1 January 2020 and as at 31 December 2020 E—-hAhE+-_B=+—8"
7557 TFE—-—H—BRK
—ZE-TE+-_A=+—H -
Carrying amount EEEE
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZEHF+=-A=+—H 5,670
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZTBE—-HAEFE+=-_B=+—8H 5,670

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) at the end of the reporting period were
allocated to CGUs of Jinjiang Jingting Trading Company
Limited* (B I EE S BR A F]) (“Jingting”).

Goodwill associated with the CGU of Jingting arose on 23 May
2019 from business combination.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and discount rate
of 11.1% (2019: 14.6%) and cash flow beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

* For identification purpose only

RBEPR BE2KEEE (ARG
BEBREIEES IREESER
RE(BRE) cREELEEM -

HpERCETEVRABNEER T
—NEREA-t+=HALXREHELE-

ZEBEM R AL E & 5 E RN E R EER
BEMET ZiTERANBSRERE
Th B A E 1R B BT L R E54 BRI AT
REEB111% (ZZE—NLF 1 146%) K
Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁtﬂ&ﬁﬂjﬂigﬁzfﬁiuwgfg
BT RAS% B EHERHEEH R
ELENEBATENEREAN XA
BBARETENTEHRABREER (FH
BEAENHEMERBRRERESRA
mLEET AR BIEEERENXEE
ZIEFTERNHFIREANEEREREY
TS EMNEE -

EHZF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

Ff 7% % 3% B =

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

19. GOODWILL (continued) 19. B8 (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, management of HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLFE"
the Group determines that there is no impairment on CGU of Zlié'é@ EHEL2EMBIYAREEME
Jingting with reference to valuation performed by IVL, a firm BB AR AREITHEE BE
of independent qualified professional valuers. Management ?ER B IR & 2 A B I fRORL(E o Efif‘
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these REBENEANEEBEEZ(H
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwil %@Z?ﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁfﬁtﬂﬁi EIRGE
to exceed the recoverable amount of CGU of Jingting. iiuﬁ’\]—ﬂﬂl [B] & %8 o

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 20. ENAHANKE

Contingent consideration payables represent the profit
guarantee given by the Vendors to the Group in relation to
the acquisition of Jingting (note 31). Contingent consideration
payables has been designated as financial assets at FVTPL
upon initial recognition and is measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The movement of the fair value of
contingent consideration payables is as follow:

ENHARERETRKBREM R A
SEEHRONBER (6 MBEREH
AE31) o A5 SR B R V] 45 B R B
ERBEAFEFAABRSNEREE R
BERRZAFEFE-BAHIAKE
A EZSHMT

2020 2019
—E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREFIT
As at 1 January n—HA—H 14,569 =
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary W IEH B AR ATEE
(note 31) (BH3E31) - 6,441
(Gain)/Loss arising on change in fair value NEEEBEER
(lz) B8 (578) 7,497
Others Ht - 631
As at 31 December R+=ZRAR=+—8H 13,991 14,569
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement (“SPA”) in REEHAKERENEER:R ([EEWH

relation to the acquisition of Jingting, Fu Kun* ({5 ##) (the
“Vendor”) have given a guarantee to the Group that the audited
net profits after tax (excluding any extraordinary items and
one-off non-recurring items) of Jingting for the three financial
years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021 (each of the “Guaranteed Period”) shall not
be less than RMB3,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”) for each
of the Guaranteed Period (the “Profit Guarantee”).

&1 Hiﬂﬂ(TEEJ>Em$%I1%m
@E*%fn$+*ﬂ:+fa
TZFEF+ZRA=+— E&_?_fi
+ A=+—BL=EHBRFE (F R
BHI) MERSRBHANLEZERD
é%@ﬂ (TEREEAERIEER R— XK@
JELFMIEE) TR AR KS,000,000
T ([RFEFME]D) (TAERELD) -

Y EHBS

*  For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES (continued)

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendor shall pay 9.67 times of the
difference between the Guaranteed Profit and the audited
net profits after tax of Jingting (the “Shortfall Payment”) to the
Group. The Shortfall Payment shall be settled by the Vendor by
way of set off against the principal amount of the promissory
notes and any remaining balance shall be paid by the Vendor
in cash.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the audited
net profit after tax of Jingting has been met with the Profit
Guarantee for not less than RMB3,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited net profit
after tax of Jingting did not satisfy the Profit Guarantee, as a
result, the Shortfall Payment of approximately RMB2,157,000
will be used to set off against the outstanding promissory
notes due by the Group in accordance with the terms and
condition stated in the SPA.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables as
at 31 December 2019 and 2020 are based on valuation
performed by VL, a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers, by using the Monte Carlo Simulation method and
a gain on fair value change of approximately RMB578,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year (2019: loss of
RMB7,497,000).

INVENTORIES

20.

21.

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

“EF+ A=+ HLFE

PR RARKME ()

fREERIEEEFERFBRE AT
FREAAEES HREFBERE mw
%V FB AR 2 ZM0.67H ([=5

FIR]) c ZERPFIAEARE 77 BB iH&
Rﬁﬁﬁimﬁtﬁﬁ'%ﬁmmaﬁ
B e

HE-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE"
MEMKEZBRRESFNEEZH PR
AR #3,000,0007T B R

BE_T-NAFt-A=1+—HLHFE"
?EE YA B AR R TR R A F R 2 AM B AR

B - AR R B B W A0 IR S R A
ZENAHARK2,157,0007T # AR
HEARERNOERERALRR-

RZE—NAFR_ZE-_ZTF+=A
=ar— ammﬁjzzw%a@ NFETE
R A B E G ER S AT BB
HEBRAFRASFERSER LS
ANHE A FEESHREZHAARE
578,000 ERFABmHFHER(ZE
—NEF: F5EART7,497,0000T) °

i

2020 2019

—E-BF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTTT
Raw material E xR 200,660 176,153
Work-in-progress & m 14,030 23,900
Finished goods 2UAK M 45,055 55,933
259,745 255,986
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from contracts

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

22. ESENRE

2020
—2-%F

RMB’000
ARBT R

EFANMNE S RIFIR

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARET T

with customers 49,538 179,456
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (105) (1,750)
49,433 177,706

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days to 150
days to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of

BERERm-

AEE—RiETHESEFI0A
BOEEH  AEEY B F AR

2150

AT TREEBHRRAER BB 28

allowance of credit losses, presented based on the earlier of BEZINEBESHEWFE (IREEES
invoice date or revenue recognition date: BEE) MR DT
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂf _j_LEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 32,808 92,766
91 to 180 days 912180H 6,304 61,241
Over 180 days Hi®180H 10,321 23,699
49,433 177,706
As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's RZBEZEF+_A=+—H Xx5EH
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregates B RRFIBNHRBRERARELN S

carrying amount of approximately RMB16,730,000 (2019:

A K #16,730,0007T (=&

—NF AR

RMB86,690,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.%E?A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

B 5% BWRIR (4)

UAREERBEERNINGEEEUINNE
BETENAEE é’%%ﬁﬁzr B (2

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22.

The Group’s trade receivables (net of allowance for credit
losses) that are denominated in currency other than the

functional currency of the relevant Group entities are as EEBBEREB) T
follows:
2020 2019
—_— 7 — ﬂi :;*FE_TLE'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
usD e 38,951 152,460
JPN = 966 13,500
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set 2 S W IBH R AN G IBHNM T
out in note 6. 6 e

23. PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. AMNRERAEMEKRR

2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi —F— j-L E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Other receivables H At & WK IE 17,523 1,952
Value-added tax receivables JE iy 1 TE i 10,554 28,964
Prepayment SN S 24,144 36,636

Amount due from ultimate holding company fuﬁlﬂ—ik? - /NEIF /G2 12
52,233 67,552

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and M E R TE I R I S AR TR AR A B 5RIR
amount due from ultimate holding company are set out in note R E R ﬁﬁf,?éﬁﬁ%#&%ﬂﬁi
6 to the consolidated financial statements. 6 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —

24. FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 24.

Ff 7% % 3% B =

CASH

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
fixed time deposits are interest bearing ranging from 1.30%
to 4.26% (2019: 1.30% to 4.26%) per annum and mature
within 365 days (2019: 365 days) from the placements date.
The fixed time deposits with the amounts of approximately of
RMB55,000,000 (2019: RMB10,478,000) were used to secure
bills payables granted to the Group and will be released upon
settlement of bills payables.

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB which are located in the PRC are subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities are as follows:

UsD %
HKD o

g1 dl

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

EHERRBRITERRRE

IRITRBRIZIZE TR AT BT A T
WEEHTDHENER Eﬁmﬁﬁ'iﬂ
TFRIEN F1.30% £4.26% —n
F:1.30% £4.26% ) E@E?‘NJ%#%\ B
BERASPERIESRAREI (ZZ—AN
F :365K) - & 54 AR ¥55,000,000
T (ZZE—NF: AR%10,478,0007T)
WESHTFHRAREKER FTASEEMNEN
ZREABNESENZERERE-

AEBURTE UARBAEZED
FRMRITEBIBECAXPEINEE

BRPIAREE SEEMCTEEERTE
FEE -

$’§ILMHFA EERIFEEBE

Details of impairment assessment of fixed time deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25.

BEZRNRERENRE

2020 2019

—B-EF —ZT-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT

Trade payables B 5B FIA 712 1,029
Bills payables ERRE 54,643 30,450
55,355 31,479

An aging analysis of trade and bills payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

RBEMRREZAHM2IZ2EHEN
FRANMENREZ R FTNT

follows:
2020 2019
—EB-FF —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 34,882 22,559
91 to 180 days 91£180H 20,242 8,889
181 to 365 days 181%365H 231 31
55,355 31,479

The credit period granted by the supplier normally ranging from
30 days to 120 days.

As at 31 December 2020, trade and bills payables
denominated in USD and JPY amounted to approximately
RMBNIl (2019: RMB177,000) and RMBNIl (2019: RMB47,000)
respectively.

HEBRTHEEH KRN FI0BE
120H -

RZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H &ET
AT ENBESENRERENE
BORNAAREBEL(ZE—NF:
AR®E177,0000) RARBEZ L (ZF
—NF: AR¥47,0007T) °
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Ff 7% % 3% B =

Z2_EHE+_A=+—BLHEE

26. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 26. FExtER HtENFEREY
LIABILITIES a8fE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% T ARBTT
Contract liabilities aHEE 1,602 661
Amount due to ultimate holding company JEAS B A4 J R B) FRIE - 2
Other payables H b &~ A 595 8,784
Accrued expenses fEstE R 6,204 5,870
8,401 15,317
Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, FE B AR IR REAEERR B8
interest-fee and repayable on demand. FiRBREE

217.

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of umbrella and the related products
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers.

As at 31 December 2020, accrued expenses and other
payables denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
RMB3,158,000 (2019: RMB5,445,000).

BMARERERNIZHREBRER
ZH REEHEANRTPEESD
HEMREMEBERMEMNR -

RZE-_TF+-_A=1+—8B UET
SHEMETERMEMERRIELNAEA

R #3158,000c (ZE—NF: AR
5,445,0007T ) ©

BANK BORROWINGS R 1T &K

2020 2019

RMB 000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT

Secured, repayable within one year B\ AR EREHR

from the end of the reporting period RB—FREE 77,150 202,800
As at 31 December 2020, all bank borrowings are interest RZZEZEF+_A=+—H 2R
bearing at the PRC loan prime rate over a spread. The bank TEFRPBEES fﬁﬁﬂf.ﬁr 8 o #R1T
borrowing fixed at interest rate ranging from 3.40% to 3.85% B IR N F3.40% £3.85% (ZF— A1,
per annum (2019: 4.35% to 5.76% per annum) and were due % :4.35% E5.76% ) 2 [E FE F M EF B
within 1 year (2019: due within 1 year). WR—FRIBA(ZE-NF:—FRK

EIH) -

The Group’s bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s
buildings and right-of-use assets with the carrying amounts
of approximately RMB5,149,000 (2019: RMB59,807,000) and
RMB9,238,000 (2019: RMB29,865,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

As at 1 January 2019
Arising on acquisition of subsidiary (note 31)
Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 10)

28. EZEHIEERE

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries

LN
A FERE
RMB’000
ARBTT

W-E—nF—A—A -

Yo R B /8 2 A P EE A (P EE31) 492
ARG B (MEE10) (30)

As at 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020

R-E—NF+-A=+—8BxK

—E-FF—H—H 462

Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 10) AL AEEZE (HFE10) (49)

As at 31 December 2020 R=F=FF+=-HA=+—H 413
No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of FR R AR 2R F) R 7 A1 B FEDRI - A ot i R
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams and REMBELERBEEE  BRERHIAS

unrecognised tax losses will be expired within five years.

BRRAFRIH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29.

IR A

Number of shares
A& E
31 December

2020
—g-%%

+=5
=+-8
'000
T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.032 FRME{E0.0325 T

31 December
2019
ZE-hF
T=A
=+-8
‘000

TR

Amount

¢
31 December
2020
—E-E2F
T=8
=+-H
HK$'000
THET

31 December
2019
—E-hF
t=8

=i =
HK$'000
FHT

(2019 HK$0.0016) (ZE—-N%&:
0.00167%7T)
# L AR
Authorised: EE:
At the beginning of the reporting 7 %R % A %]
period 6,250,000 6,250,000 10,000 10,000
Share consolidated (note a) &0 (iTa) (5,937,500) = = =
Increase in authorised shares SEERALG I (FisEc)
capital (note ¢) 1,250,000 - 40,000 -
At the end of the reporting period 73R % Hi 7k 1,562,500 6,250,000 50,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At the of beginning of A 25 BR 4]
the reporting period 3,786,000 3,786,000 6,058 6,058
Share consolidation (note a) Biné ot (FifsEa) (3,596,700) = = =
Placing of new shares (note b) ~ EZE A% (KizEb) 37,860 = 1,211 =
227,160 3,786,000 7,269 6,058
Nominal values of ordinary TmiEE
shares in RMB (AAR®FHE) 5,802 4,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note a) An extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) was held
on 2 July 2020 in which the resolution regarding the
proposed share consolidation involving the consolidation
of every twenty (20) issued and unissued existing shares
of par value of HK$0.0016 each in the share capital of the
Company into one (1) consolidated share with a par value of
HK$0.032 each (the “Share Consolidation”) was passed by
the shareholders of the Company. The Share Consolidation
became effective on 6 July 2020. Upon completion of the
Share Consolidation, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$10,000,000 divided into 312,500,000
shares, of which 189,300,000 shares are in issue and fully
paid. Details of the Share Consolidation were disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 18 May 2020, 20 May
2020, 6 July 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 8
June 2020.

Note b) On 4 November 2020, the Group into the specific mandate
placing agreement pursuant to which the Group has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent,
up to 75,720,000 specific mandate placing shares, to not
less than six placees who and whose beneficial owners are
independent third parties at a price of HK$0.20 per specific
mandate placing share.

Note c) On 4 November 2020, the Group completed to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company from 312,500,000
shares to 1,562,500,000 shares.

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at the meeting of the Company. All ordinary share rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

29, BRA (&)

Hita) ARIBRRR-_Z_ZTF+A_-H
BAZBREFERIRE (TIRFFFRKR
g) LRBEBERRNA R
BR B RBARABRAFE =T
(20) F&% & 7% 1 {0.0016/8 7T 2 B 3
TRABITRAERGEMHAE—(1)K
FREEC.0328 T2 A B (TAR
maEd]) BROABHR_ZZZZTF
+tARNBER-BRHBEHERE
N &) B % FE IR 7K 10,000,000/
JC 9 £312,500,0008% B& 19 - EH A
189,300,0008% A% 1 & B 317 R 5
BB AEHFBEERERLAARA
BAEZTZ-_ZFRAA+NAR =Z
—EFRA-+H ZZETF+
ARRBzAHMUERBHAE-ZT-F
FRNANBZRK-

Witb) R-ZE-_ZF+—ANHE -A%H
IV EREREHE Bt K
SEEERHEREEARERER
& £ %75,720,0000% 7 7F X B E
D F A DRANBEREAN GREA
REEZERBBEANODRBLE=
) BREFERERSRGOES
£0.208 T °

MiZc) R-_ZTE-_TF+—ANA &K
E 5 %A R R 8OETE R A &
312,500,000/ & %1,562,500,000

% e

EAREE AN EFANTREIRNKEE
ARARBARELEA K —ENRE
B-MEEBERARARBREESZH

% i -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —TF+ - A =+—HIFE

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 January 2015 for the purpose of
rewarding certain eligible persons for their past contributions
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the listing date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executive
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
directors or proposed director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors) of any of its
subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i)  grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
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ETEEBALBENER R KB
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W EERKINEFHEERALH
H A A @ RFEENFEER-BRIR
BN AT B A9 AR RIS H AR BT AR LB A1 -
Bl RS e T A SR +F ER
HIEHE W

BRETINEERSEAREART
S EATME AR M EREE 28k
RBEE THRABSSHABE  HE
AMEARNEMNESHEAES (R
BINTESRBIIFERTES) K
RE S E AR KB A R R A B &K
BERER: RARR]SEEMMNERE
ERFEAA BERE HER TP EK
I8 o

BT 1R R AR A 8 R A BT R
ft &1 195 1 0 5 B PR 2 B2 3847 40
EERHUE &R TEBBRERK
HAR BB BT H10% - 7
AR A BB R R R A
R/ ETRARHRENE BT
KRBT EFET

(i) BERRE A EREEEREAR
RASHAESHEZEITRMOH
10% : N,/ 8k

i) RMEEFEENEERBZEAR
HHBE10% RER AV BB AR A -
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30.

(continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within
any 12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of options in
excess of 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company; and (ii) the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under
the listing rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days after the offer
date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.

DS EEZBRERS ()

RITER BB 8 LA RBRAN
EREMBRETIRNERERARN
MR (BRETENHRITERR
B)ABRTHROHZAKE  REM
TEAREATFBBAR B EMRE
FEETIRMNA1% - LE—FRENE
PRIERRIB1%REE  AX AT EIEMAR - ()
A w) Bk R (i) BRRR R K
g EHAER/RFE ETRAIBTTE
MEMEMENR-

RAARBIEE FETHRAEBREER
R IR EHE AR TFERE VA
BN ERITEEEAHE FAEE -
AN A TR+ @A AR mE
BREEBIUIFRATEST T MEELD
e AR TR BBARQRIME
Al B A B 5 1T RR 19 B90.1% RARIE A A
AIRHORETEL BENKRTEERER
385,000,000 7T+ A BER RN R E KR
TELEMAE HAEE-

BEENBRETENHESET %M
R A BEEERRD AR =8
BERE AR TEETFIL YER
RBEBREFE LG - TEERERNH
BETHARRBRE -—BREEHR-
BRET B2 EARRERARTNER
HE&R21A K Z A A AR A X 41.0/8
Lo

BERETEEHEFET EAFER
Ti&sE: () ARARKRORERRH
BREER (BAREXA)EBXAN
MEBERERILEST —FHALROA
HBWHE: () ARBRDREZRERR
HAHATAEZE XA AR AEHARE
RFTRFHUTE : K (i) B in E{E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

(continueq)

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
37,680,000, representing 16.6% of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

As at 31 December 2019, there was 18,750,000 outstanding
share options under the share option scheme.

The following tables discloses details of the Company’s share
option held by the employees and consultants and movements
in such holdings:

30. UESEEZBRERS (@)

RZEZEF+ZA=+—H RIE
BREFECEDMRITENBERK
BETEEAITFTEHETHORMDEE A
37,680,0000% " 16 & H AR A E #ITR

DEI16.6% °

RZZT—AE+=ZA=+—80 R
EAERESSHRTEBRER

18,750,00017

TRBEERE MR MR AR R B E

ZHERE

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding
Adjusted asat
Exercise Granted Lapsed Exercised 31122019 Adjustment Granted
Exercisable price turing turing turing and upon share during  Qutstanding
Category of participants Date of grant period per share 2019 2019 2019 01.01.2020  consolidation 2020 asat 31.12.2020
R
Z8-hE
=
=t-Ak
R2%F
e -B-B
SREEH BRATRE WA
HKS
En
Employees of 10.04.2019 10.04.2019-10.04.2029 0900 375,000,000 - - 375,000,000 (356,250,000) - 18,750,000
the Group
A5EER “E-NEmATH “E-NEMATRE
ZZhERATA
14.05.2020 14.05.2020 - 13.05.2022 0464 - - - - (143868,000) 151440000 7,572,000
“ECEERATMA “ECEERATMAR
ZZ-EFRATER
375,000,000 - - 375,000,000 (500,118,000) 151,440,000 26,322,000
Directors of the Group 14.05.2020 14,05.2020 - 13.05.2022 0464 - - - - (215802,000) 227,160,000 11,358,000
r5EES “RCRERATEA ZECRERATIAEE
bk Sk 3579 gt
375,000,000 - - 375,000,000 (715,920,000 378,600,000 37,680,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 0.900 - - 0.900 - 0464 0.681

METIHEE (8T
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30.

(continued)

No share option was exercised, expired, lapsed or cancelled
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 378,600,000
were granted on 14 May 2020. The estimated fair value of the
options granted are approximately RMB1,796,000. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, 375,000,000 were granted on
10 April 2019. The estimated fair value of the options granted
are approximately RMB6,620,000.

This fair value was calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

—EET-AST-ALFE
DRaGE2BRERS (#)

ilJﬁ;EJ %xﬁliiﬁﬁ

Bz 2-_2F+-_A=+—H81
FE - R-_Z_ZTFRA+THARE
378,600,000 i I # - 5 H /Y B8 AR 4
REET A FEL A ARKE,796,000
T-BHE-_T—hAhFE+_A=+—H
FEFE RZFE-NAFNA+AHED
375,000,00017 i % # o 5 ) 1Y B A% #E A
st A FEL A A R #6,620,0007T ©

AZAFEDER A REEERR
HoZBAMEABNT

Exercise price (HK$) TEE (Bx)
Expected volatility (%) TE H R 18 (%)
Expected life (years) FEEIERR (F)
Risk-free rate (%) ERRAZE (%)
Expected dividend yield (%) FEHRER (%)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 4.7
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

14 May 2020 10 April 2019
—E-FTF —T—NF
AA+MmA WmA+H

0.0232 0.045
54.761 74.480
2 10
0.343 1.552

B0 % 0B T 3R A AN 28 R U3 4T
2ESRETEE WA ARSE
R DHERERE 2 KE M 5T
B TR RITAEEEEOY
BTN

— B ST P A (T B AR AR
D (E - 5 3 MERR A2 (AR IR
RBRDEREE 2 BIEME - BRE
ZEETREFEHBERZ FTRAYHRH

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 1@

20204 F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

31.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed to acquire the
entire equity interest in Jingting with total consideration of
RMB29,000,000, in which RMB5,000,000 was settled by
cash and RMB24,000,000 was settled by issue of promissory
notes to the Vendor by the Company. Jingting is engaged in
the wholesale, retail and export of umbrellas, umbrella parts,
accessories and plastic products. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
RMB5,670,000. This acquisition has been accounted for using
the acquisition method. The acquisition of Jingting aligns with
the Group’s strategy to shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network
and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s
branded umbrellas which command higher margins and
perfect target for the Group's vertical integration.

CONSIDERATION TRANSFERRED:

Cash consideration
Contingent consideration payables (note 20)

31.

REHNE
RS A HME (BIE20)

W A A

RZE-—NFRAZ+=8 T£BU
4R (B A R #29,000,0007T U B 55 2= #
2 AR - o A R ¥5,000,0007T LA
& B AR #24,000,0007T B A A A
LA E B 81THE R EERN TN ER
ENENE WETHH -BEHFRBR
BmigtE TEMHO - WHEBEEX
B K R AR ¥56,670,0007T  tEIEE
FRKEEAR KBERETASAEE
BEBELRER LN EEBRET
DA MR R R AR e
AEERERENERE AAEEER
BEEXESMBEEETEEEE-

EWERH:

Fair value
of the
consideration

RE2AYE
RMB’000
AR®T

5,000
6,441

Total consideration transferred at fair value

BT EERNENE

11,441
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB690,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in the
current year, within the administrative expenses line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ASSETS ACQUIRED AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED AT THE
DATE OF ACQUISITION ARE AS FOLLOWS:

31.

WK B DR ()

U BE 4R B8 Ak AR 49 A R #690,0007T B 1
FredEREFR IR YERBEFEEL
AEZREMEMBERPITHRASY —
HEER AR -

RIBRHKWBNEERERNE
BFmT:

RMB’000
AR®T R

Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y BB R (MRE16) 20
Intangible assets (note 18) EmREE (HiE18) 1,967
Trade receivables 5 IR 10,197
Other receivables H th e kIR 2,194
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 2,227
Trade payables 2 5 I 5IE (4,698)

Accrued expenses, other payable and

FEETEM  HENRER

contract liabilities EHBaE (5,644)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 28) EEFBEE (FiFE28) (492)
Net assets acquired Frik g & E /5 E 5,771

GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION: WEELENEE:

RMB’000
AR T

Consideration transferred BHEERE 11,441
Less: net assets acquired BT E EFE (5,771)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEENEE 5,670
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 31. WEEMB AR (&)

GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION: (continued) WBEENEE: (&)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Jingting because the KWEREEENE RAZEHKEE
cost of the combination included a control premium. In FEGSEE N REHEFHRE
addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively ERLBERERSBREBAHR K K
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected HmER KRTBERIEREENZ
synergies, revenue growth, future market development and MEe ZEM TR EEAINE
the assembled workforce of Jingting. These benefits are not RFRAREWAREAIHINELEE
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet Ky TERZER

the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected BEWEEENEER N EERI B
to be deductible for tax purposes. A @ T AR,
NET CASH OUTFLOW ON ACQUISITION OF JINGTING W B E RN IR SR FR
RMB’000
AR TR
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 5,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances B WENEe MESEEY
acquired R (2,227)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Jingting WHEmEMIR ML F8E 2,773
Included in the profit for the year is approximately AEERANBEREMENTEINELH
RMB2,087,000 attributable to the additional business # N R #2,087,0007T « A F [E W B35
generated by Jingting. Revenue for the year includes amount BBmEEENSBELNARK50,875000
of approximately RMB50,875,000 generated from Jingting. JCe
Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, WKEER=E—hLF—A—B=X"
revenue for the year of the Group would have been AIRAEERAFENREEARARE
RMB587,335,000, and loss for the year of the Group would 587,335,0007C * i A& BN AR EF E 8 E
have been RMB15,557,000. The pro forma information is for B A AR15,557,0007T 5 £ & K
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication THEHER  WIEVARRTMBER =
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually Z-NF-—HA— Bk BAEEEE
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed BREINREREEEE TEEER
on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of HARIRFEERTER -

future results.
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31.

32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the Group
had Jingting been acquired at the beginning of the current
year, the directors have:

o calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather than
the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the funding levels,
credit ratings and debt/equity position of the Group after
the business combination.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Detail of the balance with related parties at the end of
the reporting period is set out in notes 23 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements, who are considered as
the key management personnel of the Group, the Group
did not have any other significant compensations to key
management personnel.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

31.

32.

33.

WK B DR ()

BEAFNASBURERERN [HZ]
Was R E%:

e REXBAMFWNIAETRES
BB~ FAE (1 FF 4R Al B 7% 5
RPERNREE) 7 E A REER
WE - BEMEBOTE: &

s REXBAHRAKENEZRK
T ERERREY K RE
TE B SR AN

BEALRS

(R) MNEMEHREREA L 2 HEHF
BEREEMBRMKRME23R
26 °

B) FEEBASHE

Bran4r & B 7S 3R 3R MY s 13FT i ™)
WEEBAEBEZEEBABZA
SEEEREESIMNZBESI K
EEVERETBERABIMNA
A EMhE KHFHE -

EFLETBERTABZMEAHK
MEZEEEEEAXRBEETSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 33.
FINANGCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

MEETDELENEGEHKR &)

Contingent
Interest Bank consideration
payables borrowings payables Total
FE 1
EAFRE RITER HRAKE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-hnF—A—H - 196,930 - 196,930
Financing cash flows MERERE (10,182) 5,870 = 4,312)
Non-cash changes: FEEEH:
Issue of promissory notes upon 7 52 A% U B8 KT B
completion of acquisition of NEIRFEITAN
a subsidiary (note 31) Z4 (M5E31) - - 6,441 6,441
Fair value change N EEE - - 7,497 7,497
Interest expense recognised BERERFMEZ
(note 9) i) 11,130 - - 11,130
Others HAt, - - 631 631
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF
as at 1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HRK
—E-FF—-H—H 948 202,300 14,569 218,317
Financing cash flows BERSTE (4,639) (125,650) - (130,289)
Non-cash changes: FEREEH:
Fair value change NEEES - - (578) -
Interest expense recognised BERERMEZ
(note 9) ) 3,691 - - 3,691
As at 31 December 2020 R=Z-%F
+=-BA=+-A8 - 77,150 13,991 91,719
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

(@ Part of the consideration for the acquisition of a
subsidiary that occurred during the year ended
31 December 2019 comprised issue of promissory notes
and contingent consideration payables. Further detail of
the acquisition is set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited
net profit after tax of Jingting did not satisfy the Profit
Guarantee, as a result, the Shortfall Payment of
approximately RMB2,157,000 will be used to set off
against the outstanding promissory notes due by the
Group which are not reflected in the financing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

4. FEFRERF

AEBREATIZNFRSKELR
BRE 2FERPRANEERIRER
AR :

@ BE-_F-AFt+-_A=t+—H
ii&%&iﬂ’ﬂﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% & & #B
PTHRESERBTHEREMHA
RE-WENESZHFBENGRAH
BEERRMIFEST -

) BEZZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H
Jtifﬁﬁ 48 2 A% BR B 12 4B
RENFERZ Atk ZEHKIA
£ N R #2,157,0007T 15 F A 4K 84
*EAZH“/\ imu%%l"ﬂﬁ/ﬁ@j‘?

f B E S R B E ST A 1) R (AR
HEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 35. XA BB BRI R #EEE B

168 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR

OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY =
(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY A AEQEFEFHERRE
2020 2019
—EB-FR —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BEMB AT 262,927 267,516
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment AT RHIE 113 409
Amounts due from subsidiaries A N NETE =] 13,228 13,938
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 135 145
13,476 14,492
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses EEtE A 3,153 2,041
Amounts due to subsidiaries L N EPNGIE ¢ 14,830 20,019
Contingent consideration payables FERT S ARIE 13,991 =
31,974 22,060
Net current liabilities FERBEE (18,498) (7,568)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 244,429 259,948
Non-current liability EREBEE
Contingent consideration payables JET s ARE - 14,569
Net assets EEFE 244,429 245,379
Capital and reserves EAXRRHE
Share capital fi% 7 5,801 4,782
Reserves 1 238,628 240,597
Total equity XA 244,429 245,379
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REESFGEHE-
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEXE B
Director Director
o -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.%E?A Ff 75 % 3% B =E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 35. A BB BRI R EEE B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued) R (&)

(B) MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY KATRENEE

(B)

Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total
R& B{AEE Eifife BRERRE it iR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE A T ARETT ARETr ARETR ARET:
As at 1 January 2019 W=%-n§-A-AH 4,782 120,161 37,904 - 229,897 (31,511) 361,233
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (129,179) (129,179)
Exchange differences on translation of BENBRRELL
financial statements EXZH - - 6,705 - - - 6,705
Total comprehensive income/(expense) A2 ENE/ (FR)
for the year k] - - 6,705 - - (129,179) (122,474)
Grant of share options RiLERE - - - 6,620 - - 6,620
As at 31 December 2019 and as at RZZ-NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-
“E-FE-f 4782 120,161 44,609 6620 29897 (160,690) 245,379
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (5,294) (5,204)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEHEBRRELZ
financial statements EFZE - - (3.827) = = = (3,827)
Total comprehensive expense FREERXEE
for the year - - (3,827) - - (5,294) (9,121)
Issue of new shares BOERK 1,020 5,355 - - - - 6,375
Grant of share options RiLERE - - - 1,79 - - 1,79
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-%%
+=B=+-8 5802 125516 40782 8416 20897 (165,984) 24,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —E-_ZFTF+_A=+—HIFE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. MMEARZFE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the RZEZZEFR_ZE—-NF+ZA
subsidiaries of the Company are listed as follows: =+—H XRFNBARFBHOT:
Country/place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ date of Class of Proportion of ownership interest and share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ERRIER HE/ ERARFRAERERERR ERTRERE
WEAR AR RH Fis R B R RARELH BA/BRER IEEE
2020 2019
b et 33
%
BAL
Jicheng Umbrella BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD1 Investment holding
Holding Limited
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited ~ EBE X E#E LER =T REER
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Company Limited
ERREBBERAA BB TER vEr REARR
HK Baohui Industry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$20,000  Dormant
BEEREEERLA ) gl 200008 EEEXR
Zenith Century Limited BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD100  Dormant
Zenith Century Limited EBRELHS LER 100(r EEE%
Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd.*  PRC Paid up capital 100 100 HK$180,000,000  Manufacturing and
(note) sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts
BREMNSZRRAR (ME) & HRER 180,000,000 ~ HERHERS
SRR
Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry PRC Paid up capital 100 100 RMB20,595,500  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd.* (note) sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts
BISKEIERAA (M) & HRER ARM205905500T HERHERS
G
* For identification purposes only * EREE
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36.

37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T -_ZTF+ -_ A=+ —HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Country/place of
incorporation/ date of
incorporation

Class of
Name of subsidiary shares held

il NEET B iR 85

Wing Ka Investment BVI Ordinary
Holdings Limited

Wing Ka Investment EERRES ]
Holdings Limited

Wing Wing (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary
Industrial Limited

KREBEXERAA BE LRk

Jingting (note) PRC Paid up capital

BE () hE BRER

Except for Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited, Zenith Century
Limited and Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held for the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

Note:

The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The placing of new shares under a specific mandate
completed on 21 January 2021 and the net proceeds of the
placing were approximately HK$14,700,000.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2021.

36.

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by the Company
ERRMERERERR
FRIELLH

2020
—E-F

- =%

£
%
t

100

100

100

37.

38.

B AR ZFE (@)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
EERTRAR
BA/ZERER

Principal activities

TEEH
2019
—Z-NEF

100 USD10,000  Investment holding

10000%T  REER
100 HK$1,000,000  Investment holding

1,000,000 7¢
100 RMB1,000,000

REER

Sale of umbrellas
and rain gears

HERRRREA
ik

AE%1,000,0007

BREXKREERBBR DA Zenith
Century Limited }2Wing Ka Investment
Holdings Limited 4h - FT /8 B A HE A 7
HBRARRNBIEERE -

RERKFART AR BENB QR
RAHKEENEHZES

EFRFABEMBAREIEZAEER B MM
BXIL PRI B E o

BRESERERSETROER T =—
F—A -+ —HEXAMEEMERIEZ
584 /514,700,000 7T ©

MRS M B®|R

HAEVBRERERZZE-_—F=A
=St—BEEZEEgHE NIRRT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B8R

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilites A T 7| AEER BE A EHBRFEEHE T
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZZEEUNBEENBEHBE  HEkEaE T
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out KB GAMHHE -

below.

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-H=t—HLFE
20220 2019 2018 2017 2016

—g=8F ~“F-AF % “FtF CF-AT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTT ARBTT ARMTR ARETR

Revenue Wz 344,390 558,599 521,186 538,264 603,985
Gross profit eS| 52,795 65,861 79,393 80,938 73,812
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E51E)
ikl (31,823) (11,441) 25,260 6,705 13,514
(Loss)/profit for the year KRBEBA
attributable to owners of EREE
the Company (E518) &F (34,312) (16,247) 18,700 3,530 6,124

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“E-BE —_T-NEFE —T-N\F —E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Non-current assets FERBEE 105,238 134,665 132,899 138,955 173,889
Current assets TEEE 476,371 582,873 568,527 542,246 539,403
Current liabilities mEAaE 154,971 250,407 240,222 240,615 282,309
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 431 15,031 = = =
Net assets BEEFE 426,225 452,100 461,204 440,586 430,983
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